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NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2018 Company No. 06694512

The directors present their report and the audited consohdated financial statements for NEX Group Holdings ple (‘NGHP' or ‘the
Company') and its subsidiary companies (together ‘the Group' or ‘the NGHP Group') for the year ended 31 March 2018, The Company
is a public company limited by shares.

Principal activity, business review and future developments

The Company Is a holding company and corporate treasury vehicle for NEX Group pic and its subsidiary companies (tegether ‘the NEX
Group').

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales The registered office is 2 Broadgate, London, EC2M 7UR.

A review of business activities, future developments and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group is given
in the strategic report onpage 3 to 5.

Dividends

For the year ended 31 March 2018, dividends of £nil (2016/17: £143 million) were paid in cash and there was a distribution 1n specie of
£nil (2016/17 £1,512 million).

Going concemn

The Group's business aclivities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set cut in
the strategic report. After reviewing the Group's annual budget, liquidity requirements, plans and financing arangements, the directors
are satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future and confim
that the Company and the Group are going concerns.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had committed undrawn headroom under its revolving credit facility (RCF) of £350 million (2016/17:
£300 millicn). During the year, the size of the RCF increased to £350m and the matuyrity date was extended by two years to 23 February
2021, Under the agreement for the RCF, the Group and the NEX Group are required to comply with certain covenants. As at the balance
sheet date, the Group and the NEX Group complied with the ferms of all its financial covenants and there are no indications for the
directors to believe that the Group and the NEX Group will fail to comply with these covenants in the foreseeable future.

For the above reasons, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

Disabiiity policy

The Group's equal opportunity and diversity policy is govemed by its ultimate parent, NEX Group plc, and is disclosed in full in the NEX
Group plc 2018 Annual Report, which does not form part of this directors' report.

Post balance sheet events

On 18 May 2018, the NEX shareholders voted fo approve an offer from CME London Lim#ted and CME Group Inc to buy the NEX
Group (the Offer).

in June 2018, Intercapital Capital Markets LL.C (ICM) reached a settiement of consolidated class action suits that had been filed in 2014
against ICM and USD ISDAFIX setting banks alleging a conspiracy in viclation of the antitrust laws among the banks and ICM to
manipulate USD ISDAFIX. Pursuant to the settlement, which has received preliminary approval from the Court but remains subject to
final approval, ICM has agreed to pay £8 million ($12 million) without admitting liability on the underlying allegations. ICM has a written
commitment from its insurance carrier to indemnify it for the full setlement amount. This has been accounted for as an adjusting event
after the reporting period, with the setllement payable recognised in provisions (note 14), insurance receivable recognised in trade and
other receivables {note 16) and the settlement expense and insurance income recognised net in exceptional tems (note 3).

In July 2018, ICM also reached an agreement in principle to resolve the Commeodity Futures Trading Commission’s (CFTC) investigation
inta ICM's role in the setting of USD ISDAFIX rates for £36 million ($50 million) The settlerment is subject to final documentation of its
ferms by the parties and approvat by the CFTC, This has been accounted for as an adjusting event after the reporting period and has
been recognised in exceptional tems (note 3) and provisions (note 14}

Independent auditors

Deloitte LI.P (Deloitte) held office as external auditors of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 The NEX
Group issued a competitive tender for the external audif contract in the year ended 31 March 2016 and this resulted in a recommendation
from the NEX Group's Audit Committee that Deloitte LLP (Deloitte) be appointed as the Company’s and Group's external auditors for
the year ending 31 March 2018. At the NEX Group's 2017 annual general meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {PwC) resigned as
external auditors and a resolution was passed to appoint Deloitte as the NEX Group’'s new external audrtors for the year ending 31
March 2018.

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there 1s no relevant audit information, being
information needed by the Company's auditor in connection with preparing its report, of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware,

Each director has taken all the steps that he is obliged to take as a director in order to make him aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information
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Rirectors
The directars of the Company, who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, were:

A Aldridge Appointed 30 May 2018
D Abrehart

S Bridges Resigned 30 May 2017
J Chambertain Resigned 30 May 2018
D Ireland

K Pigaga

S Wren Appointed 29 Juneg 2017

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and financial statements in accordance with appiicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that [aw the directors have prepared
the Company and Group financial staterents in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union (EU). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a trie and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that year.

In prepanng the financial statements, the directors are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been foliowed for the Company and Group financial statements,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group
will continue in business.

The directors are responsibile for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's and the
Group's transachons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable
themn to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reascnable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

Directors’ statement pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The directors are aiso required by the Disclosure and Transparency Rules to inciude a management report containing a fair review of
the business and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the Group. Each of the directors
confirms that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:

- the financral statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the underlakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole; and

- the management report disciosures which are contained in the strategic report include a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, tegether with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face;
there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and
they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

This report has been approved by the board of directors and signed on behalf of the board:

OARYIICA A

D Abrehart 26 July 2018
Director
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The directors present their strategic report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018.

The strategic report first focuses on the trading performance of the Group and then discusses acquisitions, disposals and similar
iterns and exceptional items, which are the reconciling items between trading and statutory amounts A reconciliation between
statutory amounts and alternative performance measures 1s provided on pages 4 and 5

Business review

The Group is a financial technology business at the centre of the giobal financial markets The Group provides electronic trade
execution platforms for the OTC markets. The Group delivers transaction lifecycle management and information services to help
its clients optimise their capital, mitigate their risk and reduce their operational costs. The Group partners with emerging technology
companies to bring greater efficiency, transparency and scale 1o the world's capital markets. Encouraging technological advance-
ment to improve the markets, the Group invests in companies that challenge convention and the Group operates an exchange to
help entrepreneurs raise capital on the public market,

The Group is in the process of selling part of NEX Exchange Limited which will result in deconsolidation. The disposal is subject
to approval from regulatery authorities as well as the finalisation of certain commercial terms and Is expected 1o be completed in
2018. The results of NEX Exchange Limited are presented as discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2018. This
business review focuses on the trading performance from continuing operations.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group reported revenue of £591 million (2016/17 £541 million), an increase of 9% on the
prior year. During the year, the Group's trading performance benefited from episadic increases in FX volatility, including Asian
currency pairs and an increase in trading activity in EU repos. The revenue performance also benefited from progression with the
CFETS contract, as well as an increase in demand for post irade services such as risk reduction and regulatory reporting solutions.
This was partly offset by a decrease in revenue in some government bonds and a subdued performance in the basis risk mitigation
services, Reset, which continues to be affected by low short-dated interest rate volatility in Europe.

The Group reported an operating profit of £117 million (2016/17: £148 million), a decrease of 21% on the prior year, and a trading
operating profit of £148 million (2016/17. £147 million), an increase of 1% on the prior year Excluding one-off transformation
programme costs in the current year and the one-off items in the prior year, trading operating profit was up £19 million (13%). The
Group’s continuing operations reported a profit before tax (PBT) of £76 miflion {2016/17: £100 rilion), 24% down on the prior
year, and a trading PBT of £109 million {2016/17: £99 million), 10% up on the prior year.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, NEX Markets' revenue increased by 4% to £326 million (2016/17: £313 million). Revenue
growth was principally driven by increased trading activity on EBS and progression with the CFETS contract. The trading operating
profitincreased to £121 million (2016/17. £116 million) and the trading operating.profit margjn was flat at 37% for the year: However,
the trading operating profit margin in the second half of the year increased to' 40% from 34% in the first half. This was as a result
of the positive impact from increased volumes, change in the product mix and cost saves from the transformation programme.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, NEX Optimisation's revenue increased by 8% to £260 million (20161 7: £240 million), driven
by increased demand for compression, recongciliation and regulatory reporting solutions. The trading operating profit fell to £64
million (2016/17: £72 million) and the trading operating profit margin reduced by 5 ppt to 25% for the year. Following the deterio-
ration in the trading operating profit margin in the first half of the year, swift action was taken to ensure a significant improvement
in the divisicn's ongoing profitability and the trading operating profit margin recovered from 21% in the first half of the year to 28%
in the second half. As a result, NEX Optimisation expects to reach its operating profit margin aspiration of more than 40% by the
end of the year ending 31 March 2021, a year later than planned.

The Group continues to make focused investments to drive product innovation in response to evolving market needs. Major areas
of focus include products that provide clients with solutions to regulatory requirements and ones that are targeted at expanding the
Group's client base. In addition, NEX Opportunities has continued to invest in new start-ups leveraging next generation technolo-
gies. During the year, the Group made an investment in Ens Exchange Holdings LLC and made further investments in existing
investments Duco Technology Limited, Research Exchange Limited and Exotix Partners LLP

Acquisitions, disposals and similar items

Acquisitions, disposals and similar items from continuing operations was a net £3 million income (2016/17: £1 million income)
before a tax credit of £23 million (2016/17: £6 million tax credit). There was £9 million of operating expenses which were offset by
£14 million of other income The £9 million of operating expenses include an £4 million impairment charge in relaton fo joint
ventures and available-for-sale investments, a £3 million amortisation charge for intangible assets arising on consolidation and £2
million other acquisition and disposal-related costs. The £14 miliion of ather income includes a release of contingent consideration
in relation to various past acquisitions The majority of the release relates to Abide Financial due to buy-out of certain non-control-
ling interests during the year

Exceptional items

Exceptional items from continuing operations was a £36 milfion expense (2016/17: £nil). Exceptional items from continuing aperations
comprise the settlement of a civil lawsuit net of insurance income and the settlement of a regulatory lawsuit, both in refation to the setting
of USD ISDAFIX rates (note 3).

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations include trading revenue of £1 million (2016/17: £562 million), trading operating loss of £2 million (2016/17
£84 million profit) and trading loss for the year of £2 million (2016/17 £72 million profit) The current year discontinued operations
relate to the results of NEX Exchange Lirmnited which became a discontinued operation during the year (note 4).
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Acquisitions, disposals and similar items from discontinued operations resulted in an income of £3 million (2016/17:£1,134 million
income} before a tax of £nil (2016/17- £7 million tax credit). The current year acquisttions, disposals and simitar items from discon-
tinued operations include a £3 million discounting of a receivable balance and £4 million adjustment to the carrying value of intan-
gible assets arising from development expenditure and property and equipment, both of which were related to IGBB. This was
partially offset by the £3 million release of an unutilised provision held at 31 March 2017 which related to transaction costs for the

sale of IGBB.

Qutiook

In the year ahead NEX Group expects to make progress on its strategy to deliver against its growth objectives and drive operational
leverage.

Key performance indicators {KPls)

The Group's operations are managed on a divisionai basis, which are monitored using certain KPls. The development, performance
and position of the NEX Group, which includes the Group, are discussed in the NEX Group pic 2018 Annual Report which does
not form part of this strategic repori.

Risk management, principal risks and uncertainties

The Group is predominantly exposed to liquidity, counterparty credit, legal and regulatory, information security, business resiliency,
cyber security and externai change risks. The Group’s risk management is consistent with that of the NEX Group, whereby the Group
seeks to generate attractive retumns through informed risk-taking and proper consideration of both the upside and potential downside
of the risks it takes and faces. The Group alsg strive to ensure that its risk management programme operates within a framework of
transparency and continuous self-improverment, and that it effectively responds to changes in the intemail and external environment
and what is leamed through experience.

A more detailed risk management report of the NEX Group, which includes the Group, can be found 1 the NEX Group 2018 Annual
Report, which does not form part of this strategic report.

Alternative performance measures

In reporting financial information, the Group presents atternative performance measures (APMs) that are not defined or specified
under the requirements of IFRS. The Group believes that these APMs, which are not considered fo be a substitute for or superior
to IFRS measures, provide stakeholders with additional helipful information on the performance of the business.

Trading

The definition of trading amounts is statutory amounts before ‘acquisitions, disposals and similar items’ and ‘exceptionat items’.
The definihions of ‘acquisitions, disposals and similar items’ and ‘exceptional items’ are provided in the basis of preparation Trading
profit is the key indication of the Group's ability to pay dividends and finance future growth. The board and management use trading
measures for planning and reporting purposes and a subset of those measures are also used by the NEX Group remuneration
committee and management in setting director and management remuneration.

Trading amounts and statutory amounts for each financial statement line item are presented on the face of the consclidated income
statement. The reconciling items between trading amounts and statutory amounts are the ‘acquisitions, disposals and similar items’
and ‘exceptional items’ columns. We consider the prominence of this reconciliation on the primary financial statement to be helpful
to users of the financial statements. A breakdown of ‘acquisitions, disposals and similar items’ and ‘exceptional items' for all rele-
vant financial statement line items is provided in the table below.

&m Year snded 3t March 218 Year ended 21 March 2017
Operating expenses:
Operating expenses (statutory) (495) (415)
Amontisation of intangible assets arising on consolidation 3 ) 20
impairment of 'uwesh;u;nt in joint ventures and available-for-sale investments 4 -
Other acquisifion cosis L 2 1
Settiement of legal Giaim N » -
Trading operaling expenses - ) (450) (394)
Othar income: o o )
Other income (statufory) o 21 22
Release of contingent consideration o D (16) -
Gain on equity interest 7 - {209
Other acquisition income 2 o W—E'r
7 -

Trading other income
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Net finance expense:

Net finance expense {statutory) (43) (45)
Unwind of discount on contingent consideration 2 -
Trading net finance expense 1) (45)
Tax:

Tax (statutory) {10) {11)
Tax credit on acquisitions, disposals and similar items {23) {6)
Trading tax i (33 {17}
Before one-off items

The Group excludes certain material one-off items because if included, these items could distort the understanding of our perfor-
mance for the year and the comparabdity between periods. The directors believe that providing amounts before one-off iterns
assists in providing additional useful information on the underying trends, performance and position of the Group. This measure
is also used in discussions with the investment analyst community. One-off items relate to one-off costs of transformation and one-
off legacy items

The recanciling items between financial statement line items before one-off items and frading financial statement line tems relate
to one-off items. A breakdown of one-off items for all refevant financial staternent line items is provided in the table below

Year ended 31 March 2018  Yearended 31 March 2017

Em

Operating expenses:

Trading operating expenses {489) (394)
Regulatory matters (net of insurance claims) o 3 2
One-off dividend receipts ' 3) -
Costs of transformation : 13 -
Onerous lease provision release - {7y
Trading cperating expenses before one-off items ) (437) {389)

We expect £6 million of one-off costs of transformation to be incurred in the year ending 31 March 2019 based on our annualised
cost savings of £50 million.

This report has been approved by the board of directors and signed on behalf of the board:

DA¥sEICh o’

D Abrehart 26 July 2018
Director
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Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

the financial statements of NEX Group Holdings plc (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries
{the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Com-
panies Act 2006; and

the financial stataments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compa-
nies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of NEX Group Holdings plc and its subsidiaries which comprise:

* & &4 B B &

the consolidated income statement;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and Parent Company balance sheets;

the consolidated and Parent Company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated cash flow statement,

the accounting policies; and

the related notes 1 to 29.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and [FRSs as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial staternents, as applied in ac-
cordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 20086.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibiiities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit

of the financial statements section of our report.

Ve are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these require-
ments We confimn that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the

Group and the Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we 1dentified in the current year were

*« management's impairment assessment of goodwill;
« appropriateness of software capitalisaion, and

= recognition of revenue relating fo service and technology contracts.

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £5.64 mitlion,

which is determined on the basis of 5% of profit before tax.

transactions and disclosures that were subject to audit

flecting the size of operations they audited

When planning the Group audit, we considered the risk of errors that may exist which,
when aggregated, could exceed £5 64 million. In order to reduce the risk of unidentified
. errors that could aggregate to this amount, we used a lower materiality, known as per-
| formance materiality, of £2 99 million to identify the individual balances, classes of

We asked each of the component teams to work to an assigned materiality level re-
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independent auditors’ report to the members of NEX Group Holdings plc (continued)

Scoping

This is the first year audit for Deloitte having taken over as the NEX Group Holdings pic
auditors for the year ended 31 March 2018

Qur audit scoping is performed on the basis of financial significance and consideration
of qualitative factors We performed a variety of procedures (e.g. understanding the
business, performing walkthroughs of key business process cycles, review of prede-
cessor audit files) durning our transition to gain a detaited knowledge of the Group.

We have assessed management's defined business segments (i.e, NEX Markets, NEX
Optimisation and NEX Group and Other) and have identified eight financiaily significant
components across these segments

The analysis performed for these components achieved 89% coverage of net assets,
87% coverage of revenue and 93% coverage of profit before tax across the NEX busi-
ness segments for the Group audit.

Significant changes in
aur approach

Changes to performance materiality
The following factors identified in the audit resutted in us reducing performance mate-
riglity to £2.99 million from our planning assumption of £4.11 million.

Frior period errors' A number of adjustments were wentified by management through
the financial closing process which related to the prior period. The prior period financial
statements were adjusted for ifems that were judged by management to be material to
the financial statements (see note 2). Adjustments that were considered immaterial,
either individually or in aggregate, to users of the financial statements were adjusted in
the current year.

Finance transformation: The impact of the wider transformation programme and the
centralisation of the finance function from a decentralised model elevates the risk of
operational error whiist roles and responsibilities are redefined between location and

people.

_ the financial statements

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters We have nothing to report in

where:; respect of these matters.
. the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting m prepa-

ration of the financial statements Is not appropriate; or
. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any iden-

tified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance 1n our audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the
greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of

the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opimon therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Management’s impairment assessment of goodwill

Relevant references in

Please refer to
« intangible assets arising on consolidation {note 13); and

7
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= significant accounting estimates and judgements in the basis of preparation

on page 22
Key audit matter de- As required by /AS 36 Imparment of assefs, goadwill and other intangible assets
scription are assessed for Impainment at least annually. Determining whether the goodwill

of £922 million {31 March 2017: £1,008 million) is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the Group's cash generating units (CGUs), using the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

Management has applied the ‘value in use’ method to assess the recoverable
amount of ali seven CGUs This method takes into account expected future cash
flows and requires the selection of suitable discount rates and forecast of future
growth rates. The value in use of each CGU is sensitive to changes in underlying
assumptions and is therefore inherently subjective.

How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

Qur audit procedures included assessing the design and implementation of man-
agement's controls refating to the goodwill impairment analysis.

We challenged the identification of the Group's CGUs, by assessing whether the
CGUs reflected the lowest aggregation of assets that generate largely independ-
ent cash flows.

In relation to the 'value in use’ methodology we- ,

« assessed management's forecast of future cash flows (three years) prepared
by comparing them to the latest board-approved budgets;

+ tested historical budgeting accuracy by comparing cumment year results with the
equivalent figures included in the prior year forecasts and comparing the prior
year forecasts to actuals;

+ performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions as mentioned above to un-
derstand the impact of movements in the key assumptions on the overall value;

» ufilised our internal valuations' specialists to independently denve a range of
discount rates which were then compared to the ones used by the Group; and

« performed a detaited analysis of the Group's assumptions used in the annual
impairment review, in particular to forecast future growth rates, the cash flow
projections and discount rates.

Additionally, we assessed the adequacy of the disclosure in the Group financial
statements as per the requirements of IAS 36 Impairment and IAS 38 Intangible
assels.

Key observations Whilst we concluded that the overall vatuation of goodwill is appropriate, our
testing identified one CGU (ENSO) where the headroom between the carrying
value and the ‘value in use’ is most sensitive to the underlying profits, discount
and long term growth rate.

As the business is in relatively early stages of development management have
performed an alternative scenarios with cash flows extended by two more years,
rather than iis standard three year forecasting process, to estimate revenues to
a point of greater maturity in the business

We are satisfied that the disclosure relating to the sensitivity of ENSO to the in-
puts into the value in use assessment as set out in note 1 to the financial state-
ments is appropriate

Appropriateness of software capitalisation

Relevant references in Please refer to:

the financial statements | intangible assets arising from development expenditure {note 12), and
= significant accounting estimates and judgements in the basis of preparation
on page 22
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Key audit matter de-
scription

The Group capitalises development expenditure on software as an intangible as-
set in accordable with the provisions of 1AS 38 Intangible assels. Development
costs are capitalised once management has considered the commercial viability
and technological feasibility of bringing the assets into use, Where costs are iden-
tified by management to be an enhancement to the original asset that will provide
additional economic benefits, these costs are capitalised and amortised over the
remaining expected useful life of the asset, in accordance with IAS 38. Impairment
assessments are performed on capitalised assets in accordance with I1AS 36.

There is a high degree of management judgement involved in (1) determining
whether a project is economically viable and therefore development costs should
be capitalised; (2} determming the economic useful tife of assets; and (3) the im-
pairment assessment of capitalised assets.

The net book value of intangible assets arising from development expenditure was
£157 million (31 March 2017: £127 million).

How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

We abtained a detailed understanding and evaluated the design and implemen-
tation of controls that the Group has established in relation to sofiware capitahisa-
tion and associated reporting processes.

Our detailed procedures induded:

- assessing the appropriateness of management's capitalisation policy,

+ challenging whether there was an appropriate assessment of the future eco-
nomic benefits and approval by the relevant delegated authority in order to
commence capitalisation of development costs for a sample of projects;

+ assessing the appropriateness of capitalisation against the project documen-
tation and capitalisation criteria of 1AS 38 for the sample selected;

» challenging the point in time at which a sample of projects ‘went-live’ and the
assets created then begin amortising; and

« evaluafing management’s impairment review of capitalised software in line with
IAS 36; this included an evaluation of the value in use of a sample of assets
and the useful economic kfe utilised,

Additionally, we assessed the adequacy of the discliosure in the Group financial
statements as per the requirements of IAS 38,

Key observations

The policy for capitalisation of intangible assets is in line with the requirements
of IAS 38. The policy also includes the Group requirements for the assessment
of useful economic life and potential impairment.

The application of the policy to individual projects is the responsibility of the busi-
ness finance tearns. Given the current federated nature of the Group we have
observed a lack of consistency of documentation, tools and processes Whilst
we did not find any instances of inappropriate application of the policy, the in-
cansistency in process increases the risk of potenfial error. Management is in
the process of undertaking a finance transformation programme in order to en-
hance consistency and the robustness and governance and control

Recognition of revenue relating to service and technology contracts

Relevant references in
the financial statements

Key audit matter de-
scription

Please refer to:

+ segmental information (note 1), and

« significant accounting estimates and judgements in the basis of preparation on
page 22

Group revenue comprises fransaction fees, access fees and technology develop-
ment fees from NEX Markets and fees from the provision of NEX Optimisation
services. Long-term technology development fees require significant jJudgements
in estimation of revenue {1.e the CFETS contract)




NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Independent auditors’ report to the members of NEX Group Holdings plc (continued)

As required by IAS 11 Construction contracts and IAS 18 Revenus, revenue rec-
ognised to date in respect of the complex contractual agreements is based on the
percentage of the totai contract revenue equivalent to the costs incurred to date
compared to the total estimated costs. The revenue recognised requires manage-
ment to estimate the costs to be incurred over the life of the contract, the margin,
and the split of the revenue between the performance obligations.

The variety and number of the arrangements within the contracts can make it
complex to determine the performance conditions associated with the income.
Due to the significant level of management judgement involved and complextty in
revenue recognition, we identified this key audit matter as a potential fraud risk_

How the scope of our We obtained a detailed understanding and evaluated the design and implemen-
audit responded to the tation of controls that the Group has established in relation to the compiex revenue
key audit matter recognition identified for contracts and associated reporting processes.

In addition, our pracedures across the Group's contractual stage of completion

revenue included:

+  assessing appropriateness of management's revenue recognition model, by
reviewing compliance with 1AS 11 Construction contracts and IAS 18 Reve-
nue,

« challenging management on key judgements including cost plus margin
method, cost forecasting, and accounting for various modules by reviewing
the contracts ta verify the key terms and conditions which have an impact on
the revenue recognition,;

« reviewing the fulfilment of the contractual obligations against the contract
terms and conditions along with the revenue recognition model; and

+ testing reconciliations between the revenue systems used by the Group and
its financial ledgers and journal entries posted to revenue accounts.

We also reviewed the adequacy of the revenue related disclosure within the

Group's financial statements as per the requirements of IAS 18 and IAS 11

+ Key observations Revenue recognition treatment with respect to the above and the related disclo-
sures are appropriate

Qur application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materi-
ality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of cur work.

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as fol-
lows:

Group financial statements |

Parent Company financial statements

Materiality £5.64 million £4.36 millign

Basis for de- .

termining ma- 5% of profit before tax. Parent company matenality equates to
tefiality 1 5% of net assets, which 1s capped at 77%

of group materiality.

Rationale fo Profit before tax 18 an appropriate basis as Net assets is an appropriate basis as NEX

| the bench- the Group is a profit orented entity and this ~ Group Holdings plc is a hoilding company
mark applied measure would be significant for the users for the Group and therefore this measure

. of the financial statements as earmings are  would be significant for the users of the fi-

' | nancial statements

10




NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Independent auditors’ report to the members of NEX Group Holdings plc (continued)

used to predict future share price and the
ability to pay dividends.

- Group materiality
£5 bdm

Component
materiality range
£Q 68m to £4.36m

FBT E1.2 7/m

= PR
Audit Committes
reporung threshold
£0 23m

« Group matenahty

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the committee all audit differences in excess of
£225,000 for the Group as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on quali-
tattve grounds We alsa report te the Audit Cormmittee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the
overall presentation of the financial statements,

An overview of the scope of aur audit

The scope of our Group audit was determined by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment,
including Group-wide controls, reviewing predecessor audit files and assessing the risks of material misstatement
at the Group level. Based on that assessment, we have identified eight financially significant components and
have focused our audit work at 4 primary locations: the United Kingdom {Londan), United States of America
{New York), Sweden (Stockholm) and Israel {Tel Aviv),

Components at these locations were subject to fult audit. These components represent the principal business
units and account for 89% of the Group's net assets, 87% of the Group's revenues and 93% of the Group's profit
before tax. Our audt work at these locations was executed at levels of materiality applicable to each component
which were lower than Group materiality and range from £0.68 million to £4.36 million.

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm
our conclusion that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial infor-
mation of the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specified account balances.

Involvement with component auditor

We exercised oversight over the work of our component auditors by remaining in active dialogue at regular
intervals throughout the duration of the audit We held a Group audit planning meeting in London and involved
both of the component auditors in our team briefing and issued a set of instructions to each component auditor
setting out the audit work and the specified audit procedures we requested them to underlake We undertook a
visit to our component auditors in New York, Stockholm and Tel Aviv during the final stage of our audit to discuss
key findings arising from their work and to review their audit work papers. We also formally received audit clear-
ance documentation from both component auditors confirming that they had performed the audit and the speci-
fied audit procedures in accordance with our instructions

11
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Independent auditors’ repott to the members of NEX Group Holdings plc (continued)

Revenue Profit Group

hefore tax ' net assets

« Full audit scope s Fuli audit scope + Full audit scope

Residual balance Residual balance Residual balance

The residual balance has been reviewed at a Group level.

Control environment

Following the separation of the veice broking business, the Group is undergoing a transformation which includes
rationalisation of business processes, technology infrastructure and restructure of Group finance target operating
model. This mvolves the definition and embedding of Group wide pdlicies and standards including those for
technology risk and some core financial processes.

Due to the maturity of current framework and transformational activities that are being undertaken we have
deemed it appropriate not to rely on controls for the cument year audit.

Other information

. . . . . . We have nothing to report in
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information respect of these matters.

comprises the information included in the Annual Report inciuding the stra-
tegic report, governance and directors’ report, other than the financial state-
ments, and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, 1n doing so, consider whether the other
information 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially mis-
stated.

If we identify such material incensistencies or apparent material misstate-
ments, we are requireg to determine whether there is a material misstate-
ment in the financial statements or 2 material misstatement of the other In-
formation. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
1s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities staternent, the directors are responsible for the prepara-
tion of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due {0 fraud or error.

12
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of NEX Group Holdings plc (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent
Company's ability to conbnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no reglistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will atlways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our audi-
tor's report.

Use of our report

This repaort is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Com-
pany's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we: have formed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accord-
ance with the Companies Act 2006.

In our opimon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the finan-
cial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal require-
ments

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or
the directors’ report.

13
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of NEX Group Holdings plc (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records We have nothing to report in
. . matters.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our respect of these ma

opinion:

« we have not recejved all the information and explanations we re-
quire for our audt, or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or refurns adequate for our audit have not been re-
ceived from branches not visited by us; or

« the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns.

Directors' remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if, in cur We have nothing to report in
opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not been made.  respect of this matter.

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Augit Committee on 12 July
2017 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2018 and subsequent financial periods. The
period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the fim is 1 year,
covering the year ending 31 March 2018,

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report fo the audit commiftee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in

aoimgrdance with ISAs (UK).

Fiona Walker, FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
26 July 2018
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NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Financial statements continued

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Yeoar ended 31 March 2018 Yearended 31 March 2017 {restated)
Acquisiion Acguisiton
and disposal  Exceptional and disposgl Exeephonal
Trading cosis L Torml Trading wOPS T Tot
ol £m £n £ [ ] Em £m Em Em
Revenue 1 591 - - () 541 - - 541
Operating experses 3 {450) (%) (38) __ (495 (394) {21) ~  (415)
Other income 7 “ - 21 - 22 - 22
O 1 148 5 ¥ 17 147 1 - 148
Finance income B 1 - - 1 _1 - . = _1
Finance costs 8 (42) (73] - {48 {46} - - {46)
Share of profit(loss) of associates 21 2 - - 2 3 - 3
after tax - ) { )
Profit before tax from continuing
operations 109 3 (% ™ a9 1. = 100
Tax B B {33) -] - (19 ) 6 - {11)
Profit for the year from continuing 76 F 3 (38) [ a2 7 - 89
operations — _ o -
{Loss)/profit for the year from 4 3 - [ -
discontinued operations @ ) ?2 Kl _ 1213
Profit for the year T 74 ) 13%) [ 14 154 1,148 - 1,302
Attributable to: I .
Owmers of the Company n 2% {3%) L} 155 1,148 — 1,303
Non-controlling interests 1 - - 1 ) — _ 1
74 -} % & 154 1,148 — 1302

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to the reclassification of items from the
‘excepticnal items’ column to the ‘trading’ column and due to NEX Exchange Limited becoming a discontinued operation in the year.
See note 2 for more nformation.
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Financial statements continued

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yearonded

¥nar endac

I March 31 March
b ] 017
[ ] Em
Profit for the year &r 1,302
Other comprehensive income/{expense) from continuing operations R
ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met:
Revaluation loss of available-for-sale investiments ] i) -
Unrealised movement in cash flow hedges o 4 (10)
Realised movement in cash flow hedges 1 17
Exchange differences o _ (108) 143
Current tax recognised in other comprehensive income M
Deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income — |
Other comprehensive (loss)iincome for the year, net of tax, from continuing operations (103) 150
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax, from discontnued operations - 34
Total comprehensive income for the year ) {38) 1,485
Total comprehensive income atiributable to: -
Owners of the Company {36) 1489
Non-controlling interesis . - _ 8
{36) 1486
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NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Financial statements continued Company No. 06694512

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Goug Company I
Ac Axat
A at 31 March Ap Bt 3t March
31 March 2017 31 March my
2018 £ 25 &m
Male m (restatad) Em (restaled)
Non-current assets - )
Intangible assets arising on consolidation - 13 9% 1,026 - —
Intangible assets arising from development expenditure ] 12 67 127 - -
Property and equipment - o 23 38 6 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 19 - - 3218 3232
Investment in joint ventures . 20 - 1 - =
Investment in associates 21 M4 32 40 10
Deferred tax assets -2 8 21T - -
Trade and other receivables 16 34 47 24 a8
Available-for-sale investments L 22 17 .20 2 2
1,22 1310 3281 3,282
Current assets : —
Trade and other receivables 16 528 580 681 702
Cash and cash equivalents . 10 269 321 ] 159
Restricted funds ] 10 18 102 - -
Taxreceivable - B 11 - [ =
Available-for-sale investments 22 - 1 - -
Held for sale assets 6 - = -
] o 984 ™m 883
Total assets o 2084 2294 4,022 4,165
Current liabilities . ]
Trade and other payables 17 (58) (74) (@) (1218)
Borrowings — 8 (379 (12)___ (373} 72)
Tax payable - 29 (24 = -
Provisions . 4 {48) (10) - —
Held for sale liabilities _ - - - -
o _ {998) (850) (1,266) _ (1,290)
Non-current liabilities . B
Trade and other payables B A7 {823) {641) (580) (580}
Bormowings ] — 9 - (299) - {208}
Deferred tax fiabiliies . . 8 &n  (96) - =
Retirement benefit obligations . " )] - -
Provisions 14 a3 (12 - -
_ L (698) (1051 (580) (E78)
Total liabifities ) (1881) (1901 (1848) (2,169)
Net assets =) 393 2178 1,997
Equiy T ) I
Capital and reserves o .
Called up share capital L 24 23 233 3 233
Otherreserves ,, . 25 200 298 1 _
Transiation 309 414 - =
{Accumulated losses)/Retzined gamings [84) (579) 1,942 1,765
Equity attributable to owners of the Company _ o 338 366 2176 1,997

27

Non-controlling interests = -
393 2,176 1,997

Total equity

gin

The consolidated and Company balances sheets for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been restated due to a redassification of a
current other receivable to a non-current other receivable. There is no impact on any financial statement line items as at 1 April 2016. See
note 2 for more information. The Company reported a profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 of £177 million (2016/17: £893 million).

The financial statements and accompanying notes on pages 22 to 70 were approved by the board of directors on 26 July 2018 and signed
on behalf of the board

DR koo

D Abrehart
Director
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Financial statements continued

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Accumulated
Sihom Ol Attribartable Non-
capital ressrves Relmined 1o cwners of controlng
(note 24(a))  (nole 25(=))  Trenalstion gs the C y Total
Year anded 31 March 2018 L] Em Em Em 3] Em
Balance as at 1 April 2017 233 288 a4 (578) 366 4 33
Profit for the year T - - - [ ] &6 1 [
Other comprehensive income/{expense)
Revaluation loss of available-for-sale
investments (note 22, note 25(a}) _ - 1) - = i1 - {1}
Unrealised movement in cash flow hedges
{note 25(a)) - 4 - - 4 - 4
Realised movement in cash fiow hedges (note
25(3)) - 1 - - ! 1
Exchange differences - {108) - (198} ) {108)
ncome tax (note 6} - 1) - - [4)] 1}
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for
the year - 3 (108) ] {38) - {38)
Share-based payments in the year {note 7 - - - 8 ] - 2
Reclassification 6f revaluation reserve - {41) - 4 - - -
Other movements in nen-controlling-interests - - - - - R
Balance as at 31 March 2018 3 280 08 {484) 338 28 ]
(Acoumulated
Snom Citer fossesy Aftnbutable Non-
capita il Ratained o cwren of conroiling
. (note 24a)}  (note 25(a))  Franskaton eammgs  the Company milsrests Total
Yaar andest 3§ Mewh 2017 Em £m £m Em Em £m Em
Balance as at 1 April 2016 233 297 255 514) 271 441 312
Profit for the year - = - 1,303 1,303 (1) 1,302
Other comprehensive income/{expense) o
Unrealised mavement in cash flow hedges
note B5(a) 9 - (10) - - (10) - (10)
2R;(aal;t)sed movement in cash flow hedges (note _ 17 B - 7 _ 17
Exchange differences - - 171 - 171 6 177
Income tax {ncte 6} - m - 1 - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year’ - 6 171 1,304 1,481 5 1,486
Share-based payments in the year (note 7y - - - 1 N - 11
Dividends paid in the year {note 5) - - - (142} {142) ) (143)
Merger reserve - 334 - - A = M4
Distribution of discontinued operations <)) {12 (1,238) (1589}  {19) (1,608}
Other movements in non-controlling interests - - = - - 1 1
Balance as at 31 March 2017 73 298 414 {579) 366 7 393

19



NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Financial statements continued

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Hedging  Wetsined Totat
capitnl reserve eamings £
{note 24(a)) Em en

Year orded 31 March 2018 £m
Balance as at 1 April 2017 == S \ } 1,786 1997
Profit for the year - - 1T 177
Hedging movement o - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income for the year e - 2 177 1
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - o 1 1,942 178
Sham Hedgmg Fowtained Totat
Pabarvt AATINGS fm

(note 24{a)) Em £m

Vear snciad 31 Manch 2017 Em
Balance as at 1 April 2016 233 - 2527 2,760
Profit for the year T T - s 893 893
Hedging movement o - (1) - ()]
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - N 893 8§52

Dividends paid in the year ) o - - '(143) (143)_

Dividend-in-specie o = = (1,512} (1512)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 233 {1} 1,765 1,997
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Financial statements continued

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

Group Company I
Yar aindnd
il 3 March Yaar andod Yoar andsd
M March 7 3 Mwrch 34 March
018 £€m 7018 2017
&m (rostatad) L] Em
Cash ftows from operating activities {22) 354 {22) 989
Cash flows from investing activities y
Dividends received from subsidiary - - - -
Dividends received from associates 3 A - -
Dividends received from joint ventures - 1 - —
Other equity dividends received - - - -
Payments to acquire property and eguipment - {18) (19) - -
Intangible development expenditure [140] (75) - L=
Proceeds from disposal of interast in subsidiaries - - - 1,512
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-salve Investments 2 - - -
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments e o) {9) - -
Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries - (48) 5N {596)
Acquisibon of assodiates and joint ventures [=]] (5 - -
Movement in restricted funds ] {50} - -
Monies received in satisfaction of completion receivable - 330 - -
nition of cash held in discontinued operations - (384) - -
Net cash fiows from investing activities (B) (254) (&87) 918
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest - n - -
Dividends paid to owners of the Company - {142) - [1,655)
Repayment of borrowings (139) (151) {139) {151)
Funds received from bormowings, netof fees 139 51 139 iy
Net cash flows from financing activities T - {243) - {1,755)
Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents tm {143} (1) 150
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 321 403 160 9
FX adjusiments ) {20) 61 - -
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 274 321 [ ] 159

* Net cash and cash equivalents comprises cash and cash equivalents of £269 milhon (201 5/16, £321 million), cash and cash equivalents held within held-for-sale assets of £5

million (2016/7 £nil) and overdradts of £ndl (2016/17: £nil).

The consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated to include restnicted funds in investing activities
instead of financing activities. See note 2 for more information Restricted funds comprise cash heid at a CCP clearing house or a financial

instution providing the Group with access to a CCP.
Cash flows of discontinued operations

Cash outflows from operating activities of £13 million (2016/17: £141 million), cashflows from investing activities of £nil (2016/17: £13
millien) and cashflows from financing activities of £nil (2016/17 £1 million) were incurred relating to discentinued operations. Cash outfiows
of £13 million from operating activities comprised £10 million in relation to the setlement of certain provisions and accruals that existed as
at 31 March 2017 in connection with the IGBB disposal and £3 million net cash outflow from the operating activities of NEX Exchange

Limited.
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Basis of preparation

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Body (IASB} and the interpretations issued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) and their predecessor bodies, and as endorsed by the EU and the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companies reperting under IFRSs. In publishing the parent company financial statements here together with the Group financial
statements, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual
income statement, individual statement of comprehensive income and related notes that form a part of these financial statements The
financial statements are prepared in pound steding, which is the functional currency of the Company, and are presented in millions. The
Company is incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are included at the beginning of the notes to which they relate.

Judgments and estimates

Following the guidance provided by the FRC in ‘Corporate Reporting Thematic Review: Judgments and Estimates, November 2017,
management reassessed the critical judgments and estimates and resolved that the following were no longer considered critical:
investment in joint ventures; investments in associates; and the stage of compiletion of tachnology development revenue,

investment in joint ventures and investments in associates are no longer considered a critical judgment because management does

not believe that the judgments involved have materiaily affected the reported numbers. The stage of completion of technology development
revenue is nG longer considered a critical estimate because management does not belleve that there is a significant risk that there will be
a material adjustment required in the follewing period as a result of changes to the estimate of the stage of completion because the
technology development stage of the CFETS contract is now almost complete.

Judgments (not involving estimation): Management considers the following items to be critical judgments (apart from those
involving estimations) that were made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

- The recognition and classification of litigation matters as contingent liabilities (note 15) or provisions (note 14) under IAS 37
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets’. Recognising and classifying litigation matters as either contingent
liabilities or provisions is a critical judgment becausa it involves management's view as to whether obligations arising from
uncertain litigation matters are possible or probable. This can be judgmental because the ktigation matters arise in multiple
jurisdictions, are complex, relate to past events over multiple reporting periods and have a variety of potentiai outcomes,
all of which requires regular reappraisal,

- The presentation of acquisitions, disposals and sirnitar items and exceptional items (note 3) under IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial
Statements’. Management considers that the decision to present acquisitions, disposals and similar items and exceptional tems
separately from trading items in the consolidated income statement is a critical judgment because it materially impacts the view
of the business by the users of the financial statements. Management believes that this presentation is appropriate because it
provides more refevant and useful additional information to the users of the financial statements than not doing so (also see the
‘presentation of the income staternent’ seclion of the basis of preparation); and

- The capitalisation of costs as intangible assets arising from development expenditure (note 12) under IAS 38 “Itangible Assets’.
Judgment is exercised in the expenditure that is capitalised or alternatively expensad as maintenance or research. This is
governed by the Group's capitalisation policy which describes the nature and type of costs that should be capitalised to ensure
consistency across the Group. Creation and application of this Group capitalisation policy requires judgment in how IFRS is
appited to NEX in describing which expenditure qualifies for capitalisation as well as the thresholds that are applied. NEX has an
internal threshold for capitalisation of £6,000 for individual assets and £125,000 for sofiware-related projects.

Estimates: Management considers the following tems to involve key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty, in the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camying
amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year

- Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets ansing on consolidation (note 13} under IAS 36 ‘impaiment of Assets’. The
pre-tax cash fiow projections, discount rate and terminal growth rate are significant estimates because management has to
determine a budget for the business being evaluated. This can involve significant inherent uncertainty because management
needs to forecast uptake for often new disruptive technologies where uncertain competition, regulation, delivery of product and
dernand from dlients can impact the timing and price of services provided. The estimate is most sensitive in relation to ENSO
goodwill and other infangible assets arising on consolidation, the total of which is £82 million (2016/17: £95 million), due to the
early stage nature of the business. For ENSO, the base case WACC rate is 8.1% and the terminal growth rate is 4.25%, applied
on management'’s cash flow projection over 3 years. The valuation is sensitive to changes to these key inputs and the cashflow
forecasts. An increase in discount rate of 1.8 ppt or reduction in terminal growth rate of 1.9 ppt, would lead to an impairment as
would a reduction in year 3 cashflow by more than 33% An altemative scenario with cashflows extended by 2 more years, a
lower terminal growth raie of 3% and a higher discount rate of 9 5% was also considered and did not indicate impaiment, and

The amount of amortisation recorded against intangible assets arising from development expenditure (note 12) under IAS 28
‘Intangible Assets’ is significantly impacted by estimates of the useful economic life The NEX general accounting policy is to
charge amortisation to intangible assets arising from development expenditure to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful economic life of three to seven years. The useful economic life is a significant
estimate due to the inherent uncertain speed of commercial development of new and competing technologies to meet changing
requrements in the markets that NEX operates in. The estimate can be particularly judgmental when considering the impact on
existing assets of new technology and enhancements to existing technology made durmg the period. The amortisation charge
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on intangible assets arising from development expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2018 is £38 million (2016/17; £29 million).
An increase of one year to the average useful economic Iife would decrease the charge by approximately £8 million {2016/17:
£6 million) and a decrease of one year to the average useful economic life would increase the charge by approximately £13
rmitlion (2016/17: £10 million).

Estimates and assumptions are periodically evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumnstances. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates,
actual results reported in future periods may be based on amounts which differ from those estimates, Revisions 1o accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estmate is revised and in any future periods affected

Discontinued operations

Disposal groups (inciuding both the assets and labilities of the disposal groups) are classified as held-for-sale when their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through sale, they are available for sale in their present condition and their sale is highly
probabie. Disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair vaiue less cost to sell, except for those assets
and liabilities that are not within the scope of the measurement requirements of IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held-for-saie and
discontinued operations’. Immediately before the initiai classification as held-for-sale, the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities in the disposal group are measured in accordance with the applicable IFRS.

When the Greup has disposed of or intends to dispose of a business component that represents a major line of business or
geographic area of operations, it classifies such operations as discontinued. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operations
is shown as a single line on the face of the consolidated income statement, separate from the other resuits of the Group The
consolidated income statement for the comparative pericds 1s restated to show the discontinued operations separate from those
generated by the continuing operations.

On 30 December 2016, the Group completed the disposal of IGBB to TP ICAP. The results of the IGBB business were presented as
discontinued operations in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 as the sale was a single coordinated
plan to dispose of a separate major fine of business. Within the notes to the financial statements, disclosures for the year

ended 31 March 2017 are presented on & continuing operations basis, where possible, to provide a more meaningful comparative to
the disclosures for the year ended 31 March 2018.

NEX Exchange Limited became a discontinued operation during the year ended 31 March 2018 (note 4).

Presentation of the income statement

The Group maintaing a columnar format for the presentation of its consolidated income statement. The columnar format enables

the Group to continue its practice of improving the understanding of its results by presenting its trading profit separately from

acqguisitions, disposals and similar items and exceptional items. Trading profit is the key indication of the Group’s abiiity to pay dividends
and finance future growth. The board and management use trading measures for planning and reporting purposes and a subset of those
measures are also used by the remuneration commitiee and management in setting director and management remuneration. Trading
figures are reconciled to statutory figures on the face of the consclidated income statement

The column ‘acquisitions, disposals and similar fems’ includes items that are not part of the organic growth activities of the

business and therefore are shown separately frer the trading items so that the underlying performance of the Group can be
separately monitored. The column ‘acquisitions, disposals and similar items’ includes: any gains, losses or other assodated costs
on the full or partial disposal of avaiiable-for-sale investments, associates, joint ventures or subsidiaries; costs associated with a
business combination that do not constitute fees relating to the arrangement of financing; amortisation or impaimment of inlkangible:
assets arising on consolidation; any re-measurement after initial recognition of contingent consideration which has been classified
as a liability; any gains or iosses on the revaluation of previous interests; impairment of investments in joint ventures, associates and
available-for-sale investments; gains or losses on the settlement of pre-existing relationships with acquired businesses; and the
re-measurement of liabilities that are above the value of indemnification.

The column ‘exceptional itemns’ includes items which are both of 2 non-recuiming nature and material and therefore are shown separately
from trading items so that the underlying performance of the Group can be separately monitored.

Basis of consolidation
The Greup's consolidated financial statements include the results and net assets of the Company, its subsidiaries (note 19) and the
Group's share of joint ventures (note 20) and associates (note 21)

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the curency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each Group company are expressed in pound sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency {foreign currencies) are recognised at the prior month closing exchange rate. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets
and liabilittes that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denorminated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
fransactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks
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For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabiiities of the Group's foreign operations are
transiated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are transiated at the average

exchange rates for the period where these approximate to the rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange differences arising,

if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity, atiributed to noncentrolfiing
interests as appropriate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in a separate component of equity in respect

of that operation atiributable to the owners of the company are reclassified to profit or ioss. In relation to a parttal disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing controi over the subsidiary, the propertionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not resutt In the Group [esing significant
influence or joint contral), the proportionate share of the accurnulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and transiated at the dosing rate The Group has elected to treat goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions
before the date of transition to IFRS as sterfing-denominated assets and liabilities. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income

Future accounting developments

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted

No new standards, amendments or interpretations, effective for the first time for the year ended 31 March 2018, have had a
material impact on the Group or Company. The additional disclosures introduced by the amendments to 1AS 7 “Statement of cash
flows' are provided in note 10,

{b) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments 1o standards ahd interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after

1 January 2018, and have not been applied in preparing these financial staterments. None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the financial statements of the Group or Company, except as set out below

IFRS 9
In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, which will replace IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement'. IFRS 9 is effective for accounting periods beginning an or after 1 January 2018. NEX will adopt IFRS 9 for its financial

staternents for the year ending 31 March 2019.

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost; fair value through other comprehensive income; and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of
classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the imevocable option at
inception fo present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income, not recyciling. For financial liabilities, there are no changes
1o classification and measurement, except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. For equity investments currently accounted for as available-for-sale
investments, NEX plans to take the irrevocable option at inception to present the changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income. NEX does not expect any other significant impact in relation to classification and measurement.

An expected credit losses model replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in IAS 39. NEX expects a significant change to
the process and methodoiogy applied for estmating impairment but for there to be no material impact to the amount calculated

and recognised in the financial statements,

IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright-line hedge effectiveness tests. To qualify for hedge
accounting, it requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument, and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to

be the same as the one that management actually uses for risk management purposes. Contemperaneous documentation is still
required, but it is different from that currently prepared under IAS 39. There is an accounting policy choice to continue to account
for all hedges under IAS 39. NEX plans to take the accounting policy choice to continue to account for all hedges under IAS 39.

NEX does not expect to restate comparatives on initial application of iFRS 8 on 1 April 2018 but will prownde detailed transtional
disclosures in accordance with the amendment requirements of IFRS 7. No material impact on transition or on profit for future
periods is expected.

IFRS 15

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers', which will replace IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11
‘Construction Confracts’ and other related interpretations on revenue recognition. The standard will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 NEX will adopt IFRS 15 for its financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2019.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, deals with revenue recognition and estabiishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from an entity's contracts with dients. Revenue is recognised when a chent obtains control of a good or service and thus has the
abilty to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price \f
it 15 highly probable that there will be no significant reversal of the cumulative revenue recognised when the uncertainty is resolved

For subscriptions where variable consideration 1s provided that spans reporting periods, under the existing accounting policy, revenue
is recognised when the amounts can be reliably measured whereas under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised using the expected value
or most likely amount method at the point rtis considered hghly probable there will be no significant reversal NEX expects there

to be a change in the methodology for accounting for variable consideration but for there te be no matenal impact to the amount
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calculated and recognised in the financial statements.

NEX pians to take the modified retrospective transition option and to apply the practical expedients for significant financing component
and incremental costs of obtaining a contract. No material impact on transition or on profit for future periods is expected.

IFRS 16

in January 20186, the IASB issued IFRS 16 ‘Leases', which will replace IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and other related interpretations on leases,
The standard is effechve for annuat perlcds beginning on or after 1 January 2019. NEX intends to adopt {FRS 16 for its financial
statements for the year ending 31 March 2020,

IFRS 15, 'Leases', addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases, and it establishes principies for
reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change
ansing from IFRS 16 is that for lessees, leases previously classified as operating leases will be accounted for on the balance sheet.
The present value of future lease payments will be recognised as a liability with a related asset being depreciated.

NEX expects that the main impact will be the accounting treatment of office rentals which are currently accounted for as operating
leases and under IFRS 16 will lead fo an increase in property and equipment, together with an additional lease liability. In 2017 NEX
signed a 15-year lease for an office in New York and a 20-year lease for an office in London and therefore the impact will be larger than
if NEX was closer fo the end of its office: leases. The operating lease expense will be replaced by a depreciation and interest expense
NEX has not completed its IFRS 16 impact assessment. The impact on NEX financial statements from the adoption of IFRS 16 will

be disclosed closer to the date of adoption.
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1. Segmental information

The Group has determined its operating segments based on the management information including trading revenue and trading cperating
profit reviewed on a regular basis by the Company’s board. The Group cansiders the executive members of the Company's board to be
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). NEX has two reportable segments: NEX Markets and NEX QOptimisation. NEX ailso presents
a ‘NEX Group and other' column which includes the Group’s remaining aclivities that do not meet the definition of reportable segments.
The ‘NEX Group and other column includes the activities of Shipping companies, NEX Exchange Limited, NEX Opportunities, certain joint
venture and associate investments and Group costs,

NEX Opportunities moved from the 'NEX Optimisation’ operating segment to the 'NEX Group and other column i the management
accounts during the year ended 31 March 2018 Segmental information for the year ended 31 March 2018 has incorporated this change
in order o be consistent with the management accounts and segmental information for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated
to make the comparative comparable. See note 2 for more information.

Segmental information required by IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ that 1s not included in this note is excluded because the segmental
information 1s not incuded in the management information reported to the Company’s board and the cost to develop 1t wouk! be excessive,
(a} Nature of services

Revenue comprises transaction fees, access fees and technoiogy development fees from its NEX Markets business, and fees from the
provision of NEX Optimisation services,

NEX Markets

Transaction fees and access fees: The Group acts as an intermediary for FX and fixed income products through the Group’s efectronic
platforms. Revenue is generated from transaction fees which are dependent on the trading volumes. The Group also changes access fees
to use the electronic trading platform for access to fquidity in the FX or precious metal markets,

Matched principal business: The Group is involved in a non-advisory capacity as principals in the matched purchase and sale of financial
instruments between our clients. Revenue is generated from transaction fees and is recognised in full at the time of the commitment by
aur dients to sell and purchase the financial Instrument.

Technology development: The Group provides technology development services. Fees from the development of technology are
recognised as revenue by reference to the stage of compietion using the most appropriate method for each contract.

NEX Optimisation

The Group receives fees from the sale of financial information and provision of NEX Optimisation services to third parties. These are stated
net of VAT, rebates and other sales taxes and recognised in revenue on an accruals basis to match the provision of the service.
TriOptima: The Group provides risk mitigation solutions for OTC derivatives, primarily through the elimination and reconciliation of
outstanding transactions.

Traiana: The Group operates market infrastructure for pre- and post-trade processing, risk management and regulatory compliance across
muitiple asset classes

NEX Data: The Group delivers pricing, analytics and index solutions to financial market participants from information received from NEX
Markets and elsewhere. NEX Data generates subscription-based fees as well as licensing fees from other index administrators for the use
of NEX Data in their indices.

Reset: The Group is a provider of risk mitigation services, reducing basis risk within trading portfalios in interest rate, FX, equity index and
inflation dervatives.

ENSO: The Group delivers data, analytics and workflow tools that enable hedge funds and asset managers to more effectively manage
their relationships with prime brokers. ENSO provides a complete view of an individual hedge fund's retationships across muitiple counter
parties, delivering insights on counter party credit risk, collateral management, portfolio financing and treasury.

Abide Financial: The Group provides regulatory reporting technology, supporting market participants with evolving compliance reporting
obligations. Abide Financial acts as a reporting hub for EMIR, Approved Reporting Mechanism for MiFID and a Regulatory Reporting
Mecharmsm for REMIT.
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({b) Segmental results relating to the Group’s total operations

Your anded X! March 2018

NEX NEX  NEX Group Hedging
Markats Optimisation and ofsar Impact Group
Em on £m o (2]
Confinuing operations: - L
Revenue per the NEX Group o - ] [ - &
Adjustment for non NGHP subsidiary companies -
Revenue per the NGHP Group 50t
Trading operaling profiti{loss) per the NEX Group = [T {3%) s a7
Adjustment for non NGHP subsidiary companies 1
Trading operating profit/(loss) per the NGHP Group ] s
Trading EBIT" per the NEX Group h7a) 67 {3) 1 151
Adjustment for non NGHP subsidiary companies {3)
Adjustment for non NGHP associates and jaint ventures 2
Trading EBIT* per the NGHP Group e L o 150
Yeur ended 31 March 2017 {restabed)
MEX NEX  NEX Group Hedging
Markets Oplimisation and othsr impact
on m tm tm Em
Continuing operations: o
Revenue per the NEX Group ) i 313 240 5 {17) 541
Adjustment for non NGHP subsidiary companies -
Revenue per the NGHP Group 541
Trading operating profit/(loss) per the NEX Group ) 116 72 21 (15) 152
Adjustment for non NGHP subsidiary companies e (5
Trading operating profiti{loss) per the NGHP Group 147
Trading EBIT* per the NEX Group _ _ 116 72 (21) (15) 152
Adjustment for non NGHP subsidiary companies (5)
Adjustment for non NGHP associates and joint ventures e o (=23
Trading EBIT* per the NGHP Group ) L 144

* Trading EBIT is the trading profit before deducting net finance cost and tax

Segmental information for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to a change in operating segments for the NEX
Opportunities division and operating expenses hedging impact. See note 2 for more information.

{c} Revenue information

The hedging impact relates primarily to NEX Markets.

The Group did not earn more than 10% of its total revenue from any individual client (2016/17: did not) The Group earned revenue
of £109 million (2016/17: £55 million) from entities in the VI, £199 million (2016/17: £221 million) from entities in the US,

£102 million (2016/17- £86 million) from entities in Sweden, £36 million (2016/17: £38 million) from entities in Singapore and

£145 miliion fror entities in other countries (2016/17. £141 milion). NEX reguiated companies will meet CRD IV disclosure
requirernents, ta the extent in scope, by disclasing the information in their 2017/18 financial statements or on the NEX website.

Revenue from the rendering of services recognised in the year was £571 million {2016/17: £528 million). Revenue from technology
development recognised n the year was £20 million (2016/17° £13 million) The Group used the costs-incurred method to estimate
the stage of completion of technology development revenue.
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2. Restatements

Prior period errors

1. The consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2017 have been restated due to the reclassification of a £30 miliion
balarce from current other receivables to non-cumrent other recevables as the amount was due to be received after more than one year
as at 31 March 2017. There is no impact on total assets or net assets. This has aiso led to restatements of trade and other recevables
(note 16} and financial assets and liabilities (note 18),

Qther restatements

2. The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to the reclassification of items from the
‘exceptional tems’ column to the 'trading’ column. The classification was changed because the Group no longer considers those items to
be exceptional items. Items that were presented as exceptional items from continuing operations in the income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2017 have been restated to be presented in the ‘trading’ column since they do not relate to acquisitions, disposals and
similar items. ltems that were presented as exceptional items from discontinued operations in the income statement for the year ended 31
March 2017 have been restated to be presented in the ‘acquisitions, disposals and simitar items' column since they relate to the disposal
of IGBB (note 4). There is no impact on the total column of the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2017, which
is the statutory amount. This has also led to restatements of segmental information {note 1), operating expenses (note 3} and tax (note 6)
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

3 The consolidated income statement and discontinued income statement {note 4) for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been restated
due to NEX Exchange Limited becoming a discontinued .operation in the year. There is no impact on the combined continuing and
discontinued consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2017. This has also led to restatements of segmental information
{note 1), operating expenses (note 3}, tax (note 8), employee information and expense (note 7) and cash (note 10).

4. The consclidated statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to a change in accounting policy to
present restricted funds in Investing activities instead of financing activities as this is considered to be more appropnate fo its nature (note
10). There is no impact on total cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2017

5. Segmental information (note 1) for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to a change in the management accounts
during the year ended 31 March 2018 which moved the NEX Opportunities division from the 'NEX Optimisation’ operating segment to the
'NEX Group and other’ coiumn and moved the aperating expenses hedging impact from the ‘NEX Group and other’ column to the ‘Hedging
impact’ column. There is no impaci on the total column of segmental information for the year ended 31 March 2017.

None of the restatements affect financial statement line items as at 1 April 2016.
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Continuing income statement

Group
FY17 previously mported
uisiion
and disposal Excephonal
Trading ante tems Toksl
e £m im £m
Revenue - 543 = — 543
Operating expenses o (403} (21} 5 (419)
Other income o — 22 - 22
Operating profit ~ 140 1 B 146
Finance income N -~ - 1
Finance costs (46) - - __{48)
Share of profit of associates after tax O - - (3)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 92 1 5 98
Tax L (17) 6 - {11
Profit for the year from continuing operations 76 7 8 a7
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 41 1440 1,215
Profit for the year 149 8 1,145 1,302
Group
Resatatennent 2 Reatpiemment 3
Accusition Teading
anadsposal  Exceptional £m
Tradng s e
&m £m em
Revenue = = {2)
QOperaling expenses N 5 - (5) 4
QOperating profit ) 5 - _(5) 2
Profit before tax from continuing operations o ) 5 - {5) 2
Profit for the year from continuing operations 5 - {5) 2
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - 1140 {1,140y {2),
Profit for the year § 1,140 {1,146) —
Gruup
YT reaamiod
Aoquisiion
and desposal  Exceptional
Trading oa8t8 ftems Tolat
Em Em 2m Em
Revenue - - ] 541 - = 541
Operating expenses B S (394) (21} - 415)
Other income o - - 22 - X
Operatingproftt === e e 147 A - 148
Finance mcome ) 1 - - 1
Finance costs i . 45 - - _ . 48)
Share of profit of associates aftertax o {3 - - (3)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 99 1 - 100
Tax o 17 6 - (11)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 82 7 - [:]
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 72 i - 1.213
Profit for the year 154 1,148 — 1,302
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Discontinued Ingome statement

Grap
FY17 previously reportad
Acquisiton
and disposal Esteptional
Tradng coete Rems Total
£m £m Em &m
Revenue - 560 - - 560
Operating expenses (476) (t) (28 (505)
Other income - 2 1 - 3
Cperating profit . 86 - {28) 58
Net finance income _ 1 — - 1
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures affer tax - 4 - - 4
Gain on sale of discontinued operations . - - 1,162 1,162
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 91 @ = 114 1,225
Yax {17) 1 6 (10}
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 74 1 1,40 1216
Group
Rasixtment 7 Restatemant 3
Acqualion Traxding
and dsposal  Exceplional £m
Tradrg comts Heme
Em £m tm
Reverwe _ = = = 2
Operating expenses = 128) 28 (4)
Qperating profit =28 28 @
(Gain on sale of discontinued operations - 1,162 {1,162) .- —
Profit before tax from discontinued operations - 1134 {1,134) {2)
Tax = 8 (8) =
Profit for the year from discontinued operations -, 1,140 {1,140) {2
Grouy
FY17 restated -
Acguisiion
and disposat Exceptional
Trading st e Fotal
£m Em €m Em
Revenue 62 - - 962
ing & es _ (480) @9 @ - (509)
Other income B S 2 1 = 3
Operating profit 84 {28) - 56
Net finance income 1. - - 1
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures aftertax 4 - - 4
Gain on sale of discontinued operations - 1162 - 1462
Profit before tax from discontinued operations =~ _ 89 1,134 - 23
Tax ] B 17 7 - {10y
Profit for the year from discontinued operations .72 14 - 1213

310



NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Notes to the financial statements continued

Consolidated balance sheet

Gryun
Fr1y
previously FYi7
feported RBetnienent t nedtated
£rm £m £m
Non-current assets o ~
Intangible assets arising on consolidation 1,026 - 1026
Intangible assets arising from development expenditure _ 127 127
Property and equipment ) - 3% - 36
Investment in subsidiaries . - - -
investment in joint ventures 1 - 1
Investment in associates 32 - 2
Deferred tax assets 21 = 21
Trade and other receivables o 17 N 47
Available-for-sale investments 20 = 20
1,280 3N 1310
Current assets 3
Trade and other receivables B 590 (30 560
Cash and cash equivalents o B 321 - 321
Restricted funds 102 - 102
Available-for-saie investments 1 - 1
Held for sale assets - = -
- 1,014 (30} 984
Total assets o 2,294 — 2,254
Current labRities _ .
Trade and other payables B ___ i) - {744)
Borowings =~ - - o (72) - {2
Tax paysble _____ B {24) - {24
Provisions {10) - [¢lv]
Held for sale liabilites - - -
_— B (850} (850)
Non-current Babilities o
Trade and otherpayables - {641y - {641)
Borowings (298) - (298)
Defered tax liabilies ~ .96 (96)
Retirement benefit obligations - A4 - %
Provisions - —_——— _ 13 i
(1,051) - (1061)
Total liabilities L _ (1,901) - (1,90%)
Net assets o 393 - u3
Equity — -
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital o - . 233 - =3
Other reserves ) e 298 - X8
Transiation 414 - 414
(Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings (579) - {579}
Equity attributabie to owners of the Company 366 -
Non-controlling interests o o 27 -_._2
Total equity 393 - 393
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Company balance sheet

Company
Frir
previously Fri7
repocted 1 )
m fin £m
Non-current assets _ o
Intangible agsets arising on consolidation — - -
Intangible assets arising from development expendifure e = -
and equipment = - =
Investmenit in subsidiaries 3,232 - 3,232
Investment in joint ventures - - -
Investment in associates 10 - 10
Deferred tax assets = - =
Trade and other receivables 8 K[t) _ 38
Available-for-sale investments 2 - 2
_ 3,252 30 3,282
Current assets )
Trade and other receivables ) - 754 (30) 724
Cash and cash equivalents ~ 158 - 159
Restricled funds N ) - — -
Available-for-sale investments ) s Z —
Held for sale assets h = = _=
BN I <)
Total assets 4,166 - 4165
Current liabilities - o
Trade and other payables {1,218} = {1218
Bormowl i {72) - {(72)
Tax payable - - -
Provisions - - -
Held for sale kabilites _ - - -
T (1.290) = {1.2%0)
Non-current liabilities o o
Trade and other payables {580} -~ {580)
Borrowings (298} - (208)
Deferred tax liabikties - - =
Retirement benefit obligations e - = -
Provisions S - - -
L (878) - {8m)
Total liabilities {2,168) - (2,168)
Net assets 1,997 - 1,897
Equity - .
Capital and reserves . R
Called up share capital o L 233 - 233
Other reserves 3 {1 - 1
Translation = - =
{Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings o 1,765 - 1,766
Equity attributable to owners of the Company o R 1,997 - 1,997
Non-controlling interests } o ) - - -
1,897 1,997

Totalequity _ .
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Consolidated statement of cash flow

G
FYi7
praviously FY17
reposted 4 tated
£m [1,] o
Cash flows from operating activities _ 54 - 364
Cash flows from investing activities
Dwidends received from subsidiary - Z =
Dividends received from associates 3 - 3
Dividends received from joint ventures 1 - 1
Other equity dividends received - - -
Payments to acquire property and equipment ) 19 - (19}
intangible development expenditure {75) - (75}
Proceeds from disposal of interest in subsidiaries - - -
Acquisition of avzilable-for-sale investments - {9) - (e}
Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries _ (46) - (46}
Acquisition of associates and joint ventures {5) - {5}
Mavement In restricted funds i - (50) (500
Monies received in satisfaction of campletion receivable 330 - 330
Derecognition of cash held in discontinued operations B {384) - {384)
Net cash flows from investing activities L (204) (50) (254)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest {1 - {1)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company T {142) - (142)
Repayment of borrowings - {151) - {151)
Funds received from borrowings, net of fees 51 - 51
Movement in restricted funds ) ) (50) 50 -
Net cash flows from financing activities N (293) 8 243
Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {143} - (143)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 403 = 403
FX adjustments 61 - 81
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year” 3 -
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3. Operating expenses

{a) Trading operating expenses and operating expenses

Year ended

i) 31 March
¥ March 207
13 £m
m {restalad)
Continuing operations’ B
Trading operating expenses. L
Employee costs (note 7) e T 239 218
iT costs” ) "1 84
Professional and legal fees (including auditors’ remuneration) 27 22
Depreciation and impaiment of property and equipment (excluding IT) 4 1
Operating lease rentals — minmum lease payments 19 15
Exchange adjustments . 3 4
Onerous lease provisions release B . - [t}
Regulatory matters (net of insurance daims) 3 2
Cther . 48 55
Trading operating ¢xpenses 450 394
Acquisitions, disposals and similar fems: o
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on consolidation N 3 20
impairment of investment in joint venfures and available-for-sale invesiments 4 -
Other acquisition and disposal costs N 2 1
Acquigitions, disposals and simiar items __ . .9 21
Exceptional items: ) . . L
Seftiernent of legal claim -] -
Exceptional items _ 3 -
Operating] expenses (statutory). 496 415

* IT costs include £50 milion (2016/17 £38 million) of depreciation and amortisation charges. The remaining £61 miflion (2018/17: £46 million) of costs incured include
purchase of assets that are individually below the Group's capitalisation threshold, mainienance expendituras, certain enhancements not siigibie for capitalisation and
research phase-related expenditures IT costs do not include employee costs; thesa are presented within empioyee costs.

Exceptional tems comprise the setflement of a civil lawsuit and regulatory lawsuit, both in relation to the setting of USD ISDAFIX rates

.In June:2018, Intercapital Capital Markets LLC (ICM) reached a settiement of consolidated class action suits that had been filed in 2014
against ICM and USD ISDAFIX setting banks alleging a conspiracy in violation of the antitrust laws among the banks and ICM to
manipulate USD ISDAFIX Pursuant to the seftfement, which has received prefiminary approval from the Court but remains subject to final
approval, ICM has agreed fo pay £8 milfion ($12 million) without admitting liability on the underying allegations ICM has a wntten
commitment from its insurance carrier to indemnify it for the full settlierment amount. This has been accounted for as an adjusting event
after the reporting period, with the setlement payable recognised in provisions {note 14), insurance receivable recognised n trade and
cther receivables (note 16) and the settiement expense and insurance income recognised net in exceptional items (note 3).

In July 2018, ICM also reached an agreement in principle to resolve the Commodity Futures Trading Commission’s (CFTC) investigation
into ICM's role in the setting of USD ISDAFIX rates for £36 miflion ($50 millicn). The settlement is subject to final documentation of its
terms by the parties and approval by the CFTC. This has been accounted for as an adjusting event after the reporting period.

Trading cperating expenses for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to the redlassification of items from the ‘exceptional
items’ column to the ‘trading’ column and due to NEX Exchange Limited becoming a discontinued operation in the year See nate 2

for more information

Employee costs for the year ended 31 March 2018 includes a £3 million charge which relate to periods for the year ended 31 March
2017 and earlier as employer national insurance contributions on share awards were not accrued. Exchange adjustments for the
year ended 31 March 2018 includes a £3 million charge which relate to peniods for the year ended 31 March 2017 and earlier due to
a correction to historic foreign exchange swap balances.

(b} Auditor's remuneration
The fee pad to Deloitte LLP (Deloitte) for the statutory audit of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 was £10,000. The fee
paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) for the statutory audit of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 was £40 000 Fees

paid to the Company's auditors and their associates for services other than the statutory audit of the Company are not disclosed in these
accounts since the consolidated accounts of NEX Group disclose these fees on a consolidated basis.
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4. Discontinued operations

The Group is in the process of selling part of NEX Exchange Limited which will result in deconsolidation The disposal is subject to
approval from regulatory authorities as well as the finalisation of certain commercial terms and 1s expected to be campleted in 2018.
The carrying value of NEX Exchange Limited will be: recovered principally throygh a sale transaction and as a future investment in
associate, rather than through continuing use as a subsidiary, and therefore is classified as held-for-sale as at 31 March 2018 The
sale is a single co-ordinated plan 1o parlly dispose of a separate major line of business and therefore the results of NEX Exchange
Limited are presented as discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The resulis of the IGBB business were presented as discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2017 as the sale was a

single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business. On 30 December 2016, the Group completed the disposal

of its IGBB business to Tullett Prebon pic, now renamed TP ICAP pic (TP ICAP). In addition to the results of NEX Exchange Limited, the
discontinued income statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 includes an adjustment to the IGBB gain on sale which arose due to
an adjustment to the net assets of iGBB and the release of an unutilised provision held at 31 March 2017 which related to transaction
costs for the sale of IGBB.

As at 31 March 2018, held-for-sale assets relate to NEX Exchange Limited and consist of £5 million of cash and cash equivalents
{2016/17: Enil) and £1 rillion of trade and other receivables (2016/17: £nil). There were no liabilities held-for-sale relating to NEX
Exchange Limited (2016/17: £nil).

Year snided 31 March 2613 Year ended 31 March 2017
{restated)
Acquisttions, Acquistbons,
disposais and disposals and
Trading  shpilar Wemm Totat Tradng  erniar e folal
tm om tm tm £m £m
Revenue 1 - 1 562 - 562
Operating expenses &) i) % {480} (29) (509)
Other income - - - 2 i '3
Operating profit from discontinued operations (-] {1) 3 84 (28) 56
Net finance incorme - - - 1 - ]
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures after tax - - - 4 — 4
Gain on dstribution of discontinued operations - & 4 - 1,162 1,162
Profit before tax from discontinued operations (2) 3 1 89 1,134 1,223
Tax on ordinary activites from discontinued cperations - - - (17 7 (10}
Profit for the year from discantinued operations {2) 3 1 72 1,141 1,213
Attributable to:
Ovmers of the any [F] 3 1 73 1,141 1,244
Nor-controlling interests - - - [ - {1}
{2) 3 1 72 1,141 1.213

Discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to the reclassification of items from the ‘exceptional
itemns’ column to the ‘trading’ column and due to NEX Exchange Limited becoming a discontinued operation in the year. See note 2

for more information.

£1 million of the gain on sale of discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2018 relates to periods for the year ended

31 March 2017 and earlier due to the net effect of a £3 million charge arising on discounting of a receivable balance and a £4 million
credit ansing on an adjusiment to the carrying values of intangible assets arising from development expenditure ard property and

equipment.

§. Dividends payable

For the year enced 31 March 2018, total dividends of £nil million (2016/17 £1,655 million) were proposed by the board with a payment of
£nil (2016/17: £143 million) and a dvidend-in-specie of £nil (2016/17, £1,512 million). This equates to a total dividend per share for the
year ended 31 March 2018 of nil pence (2016/17. 710 pence)
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6. Tax

Tax on the prefit for the year comprises both cument and deferred tax as well as adjustments in respect of prior years. Tax i1s charged
or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly to equity, in which case the tax is also included in other comprehensive income or directly within equity respectively
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the pericd, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted,

by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax 1s recognised using the hability method, in respect of temporary differences between the carrying value of assets and
liabilities for reporting purpeses and the tax bases of the assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is calculated at the rate of tax expected

to apply when the liability is settled or the asset 1s realised. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and intangibles
arising on consoldation, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probabie that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax liakilities are offset against deferred tax assets within the same taxable entity or qualifying focal tax group where there

1s both the legal nght and the inferttion to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneousty.

Calculations of current and deferred tax liability have been based on ongoing discussions with the relevant tax authorites, management's
assessment of legal and professional advice, case law and other relevant guidance. Where the expected tax outcome of these

matters is different from the amounts that were recorded initially, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax

amounts in the period in which such determination is made.

{a) Tax charged to the consolidated income statement in the year

Year ended
Year anded 31 Mmch
M Marcih i
s £m
Group £m {restated)
Continuing operations:
Currenttax ~
Current year . . F 1] 22
Tax relating to prior year items 7 6)
» 16
Deferred tax . e
Current year B ] {4)
Tax relating to prior year items - (1)
Change in tax rate associated with US tax reform N -
— . e {18) (5)
Total tax charged to the consolidated income statement 10 11
The total tax charge in the consolidated income statement for discontinued operations is £nil (2016/17; £10 million).
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the trading and total profit before tax in the income statement as follows;
T Your anded 3¢ Maseh 2048 Year ended 31 March 2017
- Tax on trading
Tax on trading profit
profit  Tax on profit Em  Taxon profit
Group Em Em (resiated) Em
Conbnuing operations. o ) o
Profit before tax 108 76 99 100
Profit before tax at the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK of 19% (2016/17: 21 1 20
20%) o o 4 o
Reconciling items: ] e o
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes -] 12 5 5
Non-taxable income - D ) I | ) E ) ) _ (8}
Impact of overseas taxrates R 14 1 3 S
Movement in provisions o {1 1) 1 1
Tax on mandatory repatriation of unremitted earnings 2 _2 .- -
Prior year adjustment to current and deferred tax 1 7 {8) {7}
Deferred tax impact of change in tax rates S o (1) {27) - -
Total tax charged to the consolidated income statement 33 10 7. n
Effective tax rate - - 0% 13% 7% 1%

The reconciliabon of tax on trading profit before tax has been raestated for the year ended 31 March 2017 due to the reclassificaton of
itens from the ‘exceptional tems' column to the 'trading” column and due to NEX Exchange Limited becoming a discontinued
operation n the year. See note 2 for more information
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6. Tax continued

The UK Finance Act 2016 included legislation that reduced the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK from 20% to 19% from

1 April 217 and to 17% from 1 Aprit 2020. UK deferred tax will therefore unwind at a rate of 19% for periods from 1 April 2018

to 31 March 2019,

On 22 December 2017, the US tax legislation commonly known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act {the Act) was enacted and included
substantial changes to the taxation of US comporations. This year the most notable impacts of the Act's provisions to the Group is a
one-off £2 million tax charge related to mandatory deemed repatnation of profits to US entities which hold non-US subsidiaries

as well as a reduction in the US Federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% The rate reduction gives rise to a £27 million
cradit in relation to reducing US deferred tax labilities, principally in relation to goodwill

(b) Tax charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income and equity during the year

Year ended Yaar siwled
31 March 31 March

P o7
£m £m
Current tax -
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges ] 1 1.
1 1
Deferred tax —_—
Share-based payments ™ a
e e — {1}
Total tax recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1 -
Total tax recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in equlity L - -
(¢} Deferred tax balances recognised on the balance sheet
Y arvched Ax It
1 March 71 March
2e1e m7
Group Em Em
Deferrad tax assets B B 21
Deferred tax liabilities o o {51} (96)
Net balances ] B {49) (75}
(d} Deferred tax — movement of Group balances before offset within countries
o Intangibie Deferred
E ] T inroid
arsingon Employese- ancaed
Goodeld  cormbolidelicn relnied dees [ T vtwr Fodal
Group € £m £m £m m tm
Continuing operations:
Net balances at 1 Apn! 2017 T {30) 8 % 1 ®_ @5
Tax (charge)credit {5) 1 - (1} =19
Movement {to)from equity M 2 (3) - 4 _a
FX adjustments - ~ 7 - - - 1 8
Net balances as at 31 March 2018 (64} (3) 42 - {4) (49)
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6. Tax continued
Intang bie Dakored
ARG ntone and
arising on Employae- oGt
Cagdwill  eonsokdaton Teiae e axpanses Ctiowr Totat
Group £m Em Em £m £m £m
Continuing operations:
Net balances at 1 April 2016 L (66) [C I - 1 1 {56)
Tax (charge)/credit o - (6} 6 3 - 2 5
Tax credit to equity - - 1 - - 1
FX adjustments _ ®_ . m 1 ot {8
Other - ] 2 - (12) {17
Net balances as at 31 March 2017 {80) (6) 19 1 [N (75)

A deferred tax liability for taxabie temporary differences relating to goodwill has been recognised to the extent it does do not arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. The amounts recognised in Goodwill relate to historic US acquisitions where a current tax deduction for
purchased goodwill is available. Because the taxable temporary difference does not relate to the initral recognition of the goodwill, the
resulting deferred tax liability has been recognised. The liability decreased during the year due to the reduction in the US tax rate and the
amournt would be expected to be recycled to the income statement in future were there an impairment or sale of the business.

(e) Unrecognised deferred tax

No deferred tax liabilites have been recognised on temporary differences associated with unremitted eamings of subsidiaries as the Group
is able to controt the timing of distributions and overseas dividends are largely exempt from UK tax

Deferred tax assets in respect of capital losses, trading and non-trading losses have not been recognised as their future recovery is
uncertain or not curmently anticipated. The deferred tax assets not recognised are as follows

Yt eyt Az wt

i Mhanch 31 Manh

- 1] 207

Group [ e
Capital losses . B 8 6
Trading losses 37 38
Non-trading losses . 42 9

The capital losses, frading losses and non-trading UK losses are available to carry forward indefinitely subject to applicable income arising
in future years. Non-trading losses arising in the US have up to a 20-year carry forward time limit. In addition, £34 million (2016/2017: £34
million) of UK trading losses not recognised relate to operations coming within discontinued operations

For the Company, a deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of non-trading UK losses of £36 million These losses are
available to be carried forward indefinitely.

7. Empiloyee information and expense

The Group operates several pension ptans, including both defined beneft and defined contribution schemes. Payments fo defined
contribution schemes are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement as they fall due. Any difference between the
payments and the charge is recogrised as a short-term asset or liability.

The Group awards share options and other share-based payments as part of its employee incentive schemes as well as other
share-based payment transactions. The fair value of services received is measured by the fair value of the shares or share options
awarded at the grant date and is charged to employee expenses over the period the service is received on a straight-line basis,

A corresponding amount is recognised in equity. Employer national insurance contributions are accrued on share awards

38



NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Notes to the financial statements continued

7. Employee information and expense continued

(a) Analysis of employee costs
Year ended
Y our ended M March
31 March 017
2018 £m
(restated)
Continuing operations:

Gross salaries (including bonuses)
Social security costs

gggoagg 5
2

Share-based payments 4
Pension costs o 8
Gross employee costs . 203
Employee costs capitalised as internally generated intangible assets (note 13) (45
Net employee costs” 218

* Net employee costs of £241 milion (2016/17; £218 million) includes £239 million (2016/17- £218 million) which 1s presented in the trading column and £2 million
{20187 Enil) which is preseried in the acquisitions, dispasals and similar items column.

Employee costs for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated due to NEX Exchange Limited becoming a discontinued operation
in the year. See note 2 for more information.

Details of the Group’s share based payments are disclosed in the NEX Group plc 2018 Annual Report, which does not form part of
these financial statements.

{b) Number of employees analysed by operating segment

Average Year end

Yenrondad  Yoar wnmd As at An at

31 March 31 March 3 March 31 Manch

013 a7 2018 oy

Continuing operations:

NEX Markets ) 716 654 684 728

NEX Optimisation B 927 782 818 906
NEX Group and other - M 34 307

Total 1,946 1,817 4,934 1,941

The number of employees analysed by operating segment includes contingent workers.

{c) Key management remuneration

Key management consists of the members of the Global Executive Management Group (GEMG), including the executive directors of the
board.

The aggregate short-term employee benefits for key management was £14 mitlion (2016/17: £17 millon) A charge of £5 million
(2016/17: £3 miillion) was recognised in the consolidated income statement refating to share options held by key management.
Retirement benefits accrued to three (2016/17: four) members of the GEMG under defined contribution schemes and during the year
key management received £0. f million {2016/17: £0.1 million) in post-employment benefits. A loan of £1 million (2016/17; £1 million)
was provided to members of the GEMG.

Company

The Company does not have any employees. Dunng the year, no remuneration was earned by the directors for the provision of services
to the Company. The directors of the Company are also employees of the Group and their remuneration costs were bome by a fellow
subsidiary of the Group.
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8. Net finance expense

(a) Met finance expense
Yanranded  Year ended
M Mo 31 March
rna o7
im £m
Continuing operations: i o o
Finance income ) B S
interest receivable and other income . . 1 1
Total finance income . _ 1 1
Finance costs R 7 -
interest payable and similar charges {13) (20)
Interest payable to affiliates 24) 23
Other finance cosis - . @) )]
Totat finance costs ) s5)
Net finance expense 43) (45)

(b} Interest rate risk exposure

The Group has an exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on both its cash positions and borrowings which it manages through a com-
bination of pound sterling, euro and yen debt drawn on fixed and floating rate terms. The Group's objective is to minimise its interest cost
and the impact of interest rate volatility on the Group’s consolidated income statement. in addition to debt, the Group's treasury policies
alsa permit the use of denivatives including interest rate swaps, interest rate options, forward rate agreements and cross currency swaps
to meet these objectives.

9. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds net of issuance costs incuimed. At subsequent reporting
dates borrowings are held at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with changes in value recogrised through
the consolidated income statement. Issuance costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

(a) Long-term borrowings

Fair vajus Group c ny

Az Ik As 5t

LT H:.m: N MA:r; b 11 IA-::; I Mls:v 21 Mayoh 31 Manch

o 2011 2018 2017 2018 2017

tm Em o frn [ em

Five-year senior notes repayable FY2018/19 S B - 318 - 298 - 298
. .= 318 - 268 - 298

The five-year senior note was presented under long-term borrowings as at 31 March 2017 but have been presented under short-term
borrowings as at 31 March 2018 as its maturity date is in March 2019.

The Group's £350 million RCF was undrawn as at 31 March 2018 (2016/17: undrawn) resufting in committed headroom of £350 miilion
(2016/17: £30G million) During the year, the size of the RCF increased to £350 million and the maturity date was extended by two years to
23 February 2021. The RCF incorporates a $200 million swingline facility of which $75 million is available as a late day fronted facility The
weighted average effective interest rate for the year was 2.3% (2016/17° 2 1%)

The Group's bank facilities contain several customary financial and operational covenants. Included in these, NEX Group plc 1s required to
remain as the ultimate holding company in the NEX Group The Group and Company remained in compliance with the terms of alf its
financial covenants throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.
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9. Borrowings continued

{b) Committed facilities
Group Group Group Group
an nl et as at 1 4
3 March 31 Marh 15 Warch 31 Manh
208 01 2017 M7
£m n &m £m
Group Deanen Khencirm ey Drawn Undrawn*
Less than one year o 87 - T2 -
Between one and two years _ - - = =
Between two and five years - 350 208 300
87 B0 379 300

*  The undrawn balance has been dassified based on the maturty date of the facility,

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s long-term issuer ratings were Baa3 by Moody's and BBB by Fitch. Foliowing the announcement of the
Offer both agencies have placed the Group on review for a potential upgrade.

(c) Short-term borrowings

Fuir vakse Grouwp Compary

Asat Asat Asat e Aa ut Agat

¥aen 30 Maan MMarch  DiMech M Memh 31 Maxh

=i 2017 2018 w7 s 2017

' Em o Em Em £m am

Japanese yen loan 67 72 &7 72 (14 72
Five-year senior notes repayable FY2018/19 . 316 - ] — 308 -
B3 T2 m 72 7] 72

For several years, the Group has entered into a series of yen term loans with Tokyo Tanshi Co Limited, borrowing each for a term of
up to six months. These loans have been refinanced either immediately on maturity or a few days thereafter with similar terms.

The five-year senior notes are presented on the balance sheet at amortised cost, net of fees. To enabie the Group to manage the
translational exposure, which arises because the notes are denominated in euros, and to meet its risk managerment objective of minimising
both interest cost and the impact of interest volatility on its consolidated income statement, the Group entered irto ¢ross currency swaps
to convert its obligations over the life of €250 million of the notes from euros to pound sterling at an FX rate of 1 21. These swap from a
fixed effective euro interest rate of 3.20% to a fixed pound sterling interest rate of 4.39%, The swaps have been accounted for as a cash
flow hedge and as at 31 March 2018 have a fair market value of £14 million asset {2016/17: £7 million asset) and they offset the effect of
FX on the notes. The remaining €100 million of the notes remain in euros and have been designated as a net investment hedge of the
Group's ewro-denominated net assets,

The fair value of the five-year senior notes repayable 2019 has been measured using level 1 fair value measurement inputs,

10. Cash

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hard, demand deposits and other short-ferm highly liquid investments which are subject to
insignificant risk of change in fair value and are readily convertible inte a known amount of cash with less than three months' maturity.
Overdrafts are classified as short-term borrowings {note 9), not as cash and cash equivalents.

The Group hoids money, and occasionally financial instruments, on behalf of clients (client monies) in accordance with local regulatory
rules. Since the Group is not beneficially entitled to these amounts, they are excluded from the consolidated balance sheet along with the
corresponding liabilities to clients.

Restricted funds compnse cash held with a CCP clearing house, or a financial institution providing NEX with access te a CCP, and funds
set aside for regulatory purposes driven by margin requirements, but excluding client money. The funds represent cash for which the
Group does not have immediate and direct access or for which regulatory requirements restrict the use of the cash. Such funds may be
returned the next day as the trades at the CCP are settled.
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10. Cash continued

(a) Reconcliiation of Group profit before tax 1o net cash flow from operating activities

Year anded

¥ mr endodg 31 March

31 Mamh 2017

W18 P

Group Em  (restated)

Profit before tax from continting operations T8 100

Profit before tax from discontinued operations (note 4) B 1 1,223

Operating one-off tems - 23

Share of profit of associales after tax 2) gl

Share of loss/(profit) of joint ventures after tax - (2}

Amortisation of intangible assefs arising on consalidation (note 3) e 3 20

Amortisation of intangible assets arising from development expenditure {note 12) 38 39
Depreciation of property and equipment (note 23) ] 14 16
impairment of property and eguipment (note 23} . - 2

mpairment of investment in joint ventures (note 20) . 1 -

impairment of available-for-sale investments (note 22) _ 3 .-

16 (1)

Other acquisitions, disposals and similar iems e
Gain on equity interest (note 3)

Gain on distribution of discontinued operations (note 4) . (1,162
Share-based payments (trading) 7
Net finance expense (note 8) 41
Increase of frading provision 3

Operating cash flows before movements in wodmLpital
Decreasef(increase) in trade and other receivables

as§ssa..[
8

{Decraase)increasa in trade and ather payables B o 283
Timing differences on unsetiled matched principal trade o =83
Mﬁhdwmbﬁmom-oﬁm w13 457
Operating one-off ftems paid ] o (15) (48}
Cash generated by operations 58 409
Interest received . 1 _ 2
Interest paid - - — _{40) {14)
Tex paid ] (41) {43)
Cash flow from operating activities {22) 354

The reconciliation of Group profit before tax to net cash flow from operating activities has been restated due to NEX Exchange Limited
becoming a discontinued operation in the year. See note 2 for more information,

The cash flow movement in trade and other receivables includes the net movement on matched principal transactions and deposits for
securities borrowedfocaned,

The reconciliation of Group profit before tax to cash flow from operating activities includes discontinued operations

{b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Yoar encled 31 March 2018 Year ended 31 March 2017

Long-term  Shont-thin Long-term Short-term

Group borrowings  borrowings Total borowangs borowings Total
£m &m £m Em m £m

As at 1 April - ' 298 T2 E2{1) 384 84 448
Cash movements ] I -
Repayment of borrowings - {139) {138) (08 (43) . _(151)
Funds received from borrowings, net of fees - 13 19 - 51 51
Non-cash movements: L L
Reclassification of borrowings o (306) b - - - -
Exchange adjustment 8 {&) 3 22 - 22
As at 311 March B - 3 373 298 72 370
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Yoar ended 31 March 2018

Year anded 31 March 2017

Longterm ok 4w Long-tamn Short-tenm

Compan borowings  borrowings Totai bormowings  bomowings Total

pany £m &m Em Em im m
AsatiApil 298 2 3 384 64 448
Cash movements:
Repayment of borrowings - (B9 W) (108) (43) (151)
Funds received from borrowings, net of fees - 139 139 - 1 51
Non-cash movements: -
Reclassification of borrowings _ o s - - - -
Exchange adjustment [ ] 5 3 2z - 22
As at 31 March - 3 758 72 370
{c) Net debt

Net debt compnses cash and cash equivalents less gross debt Restricted funds is not included within net debt due to sts availability

constraints {note 10{f).

Group Company
As at Asat b a As 3t
31 March 31 March 3t Marmh 31 Misch
208 2097 2018 2017
im £n £m &m
Gross debt {note 9) ) £373) {370 {373) (370)
Cash and cash equivalents o 269 321 80 159
Net debt {104) (49) {203) (211)
(d) Total cash
- o Group Company
Yaar snded Voo wimixi  Year ended Your ended
H Marh 31 Mwrch 3 March 31 March
28 W e m7
m &m Em Em
Cash and cash equivalents . 288 321 =0 159
Restricted funds . 18 102 - =
Total cash _ 27 423 ) 159
(e} Client money

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held client maney of £nil (2016/17- £26 million). This amount, together with the comesponding liabilities

to dlients, is not inciuded in the Group’'s consolidated balarnce sheet.
{f) Restricted funds

Restricted funds comprise cash held at a CCP clearing house or a financial institution providing NEX with access to a CCP The balance
fluctuates based on business events around the year end and decreased during the year by £84 million to £18 million as at 31 March 2018

(2016/17" increased by £78 million to £102 million).
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11. Capital and liquidity planning and management

The Group does not seek to take proprietary market risk positions, so does not seek to expose its capital to market risk, and it does not
undertake any form of maturity fransformation so does not seek liquidity nsk. Thus, the overall approach to the planning and management
of the Group’s capital and liquidity 1s to ensure the Group's solvency, 1.e its continued ability to conduct business, deliver retums to
shareholders and support growth and strategic initiatives.

Liquidity

Group

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk because of trades executed as matched principal which result in margin and collateral requirements
from clearing houses, clearing banks and because of regulatory rules stipulating the maintenance of certain liquidity buffers. Such
requirements can arise up until setlement which is typically only for a one- to five-day period.

Liquidity risk occurs primanly in BrokerTec US LLC which is required to deposit margins from time to time with the FICC and its clearing
bank. BrokerTec US LLC uses its funded cash together with access to the Group's $200 million swingline facility and RCF to manage its
liquidity requirements.

The Group has a centralised approach to the provision of contingency funding for its frading entities, Through the GFC, the board
pericdically reviews the liquidity demands of the Group and the financial resources available to meet these demands. The GFC ensures
that the Group, in totality and by subsidiary, has sufficient liquidity avaiiable to provide constant access, even in periods of market stress,
to an appropriate level of cash, other forms of marketable securities and committed funding lines to enable it to finance its ongoing
operations, proposed acquisitions and other reasonable unanticipated events on cost-effective and attractive terms.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had gross debt of £373 million (2016/17: £370 million), the maturity analysis of which is set out in note 9,
and cash and cash equivalents of £269 milkon (2016/17; £321 million) {see note 10(c)). Cash held at dearing houses, or a financial
institution providing the Group with access to a CCP to which the Group has no immediate access in practice, is disclosed as restricted
funds in the financial statements (note 10(f).

The Group invests iis cash balances in a range of capital protected instruments including money market deposits, AAA-rated liquidity
funds and government bonds with the objective of optimising the retumn, white having regard to counterparty credit risk and lquidity. Except
for sorne small, local cash management balances, surpius cash is invested with strong insttutions holding investment grade ratings.
Company

The Company's policy is to ensure that it has constant access to an appropriate level of liqudity to enable it fo finance its forecast ongoing
operations, proposed acquisitions and other reasonable unanticipated events on cost-effechive and atiractive terms.

Capital management
The Group's capital strategy is to maintain an efficient and strong capital base which maximises the retum to its shareholders, while also

maintaining flexibility. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (note 9) and equity, including share capital (ncte 24), other
reserves (note 25) and retained eamings.

The Group seeks to ensure that it has sufficient regulatory capital in each of its regulated entities to meet local regulatory requirements.
As none of the regulated companies in the Group {ake proprietary positions they do not have an inventory of assets so regulatory capital
is mostly covered by cash and for the year ended 31 March 2018 all entities complied with their requirements.

In general, higher levels of market volatility can resuit in increased demand for the Group's services. As the capital requirements in the
Group's regulated entities are, however, drven predominantly by the fixed cost base, the impact of changes in volumes on the capital
requirement is significantly dampened As such, absent a material acquisition, existing capital resources are viewed as sufficient to operate
and to continue to invest in the development of the Group's businesses

12. Intangible assets arising from development expenditure

Development expenditure on software is recognised as an intangible asset in accordance with the provisions of IAS 38 ‘Intangible
Assets’. Capitalised expenditure is recognised initially at cost and is presented subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation and
provisions for impaiment. Amortisation of these assets is charged to the consolidated income staternent on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful economic life of the asset of three to seven years. The Group reviews the useful economic lives of these assets on a
regular basis.

Development costs are incurred and capitalised when a final development plan (including the specifics of the assefs to be developed)

is signed off by a committee with appropriate delegated autherity (including business management boards). As part cf the approval
process, the committee considers the commercial viability and technological feasibility of bringing the asset into use. Where any

costs are wentified by an appropriately authorised management committee to be an enhancement to the original asset, these costs

are capitafised and amortised over the remaining expected useful fife of the asset.

Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understanding. Research costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Costs that do not meet the capitalisation critena, such as costs for undertaking feasibility studies, are recorded in the income
statement When a project is abandoned in the development phase, costs are charged to the income statement, Once an intemally
generated software asset is brought into use, any ongoing related costs are charged to the income statement to the extent that they
relate to ongoing maintenance of the asset.

The Group has an internal threshold for capitalisation of £5,000 for individual assets and £125,000 for software-related projects.
The key component of the development costs 1s compensation of employees. Each of the Group's businesses and the Group's
infrastructure area have their own dedicated IT project development teams.
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12. intangible assets arising from development expenditure continued

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets arising from development expenditure 1s charged within operating expenses.
Amortisation is charged against assets from the date at which the asset becomes avallable for use.

i 201807

Gronigp m £m

Davelopment Anmuts umoer Told Devalopimdnt  Assels under Tolal

expenditure oomstryction om expanditure  constnuction £m
m £m Em Em

Cost
AsatliApa ™ [ m2 159 48 207
Addiions™ - 70 70 _ - 58 58
Disposals ) n - 1) - = -
Reclasslfication _89 [ ] - __ &0 50) —
Other mavements (16} - 1 - - =
Transfer to held for sale _ 1) - 1 - - —
Exchange adjusiments L {18) {1} {17 15 1 16
As at 31 March 253 = an 224 58 282
Accumulated amortisation and impairment .
As at 1 April 455 - ] 119 -~ 119
Amortisation charge for the year o ) - » 29 - ]
Disposals [5)) - M - - =
Other movements - 28 - - _
Transfer to held for sale [ ] - Nl - - —
Exchange adjustrnents _ (9 - (9 7 - 7
As at 31 March 164 - 164 155 - 155
Net book value
As at 31 March ) [ s & 58 127

* Included within additionsa are £57 milion (2015/16: £45 million) of employse costs (nota 7(a))
The additions and amortisation charge during the year is disclosed by operating segments in note 1.

The 2016/17 table has been updated fo provide the split between development expenditure and assets under construction. The total
column is unchanged from the prior year. The other movements of net £6 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 relates to periods for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and earlier due to adjustments to the carrying values of intangible assets arising from development
expenditure,
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13. Intangible assets arising on consolidation

Since 1 April 2004, intangible assets arising on conselidation include goodwill and other separately identifiable intangible assets such as
client relationships and cilent contracts that arose on business combinations The amortisation and any impaiment s included n the
consolidated income statement within the column ‘Acquisitions, disposals and similar items’ The Group reviews the performance of the
acquired businesses and reassesses the period over which the acquired intangible asset is likely to continue to generate cash flows that
exceed the carrying value

i) Goodwilt

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries when the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controling interest and the fair value of any previously held equry interest in the acquiree exceeds the amount of the identifiable net
assets acgured. If the amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired is greater, the difference is recognised immediately in the
income statement. Goodwill is inHtially recognised at cost and is subsequently held at cost less any provision for impairment.

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of investments in joint ventures when the cost of investment exceeds NEX's share of the net far

vaiue of the joint venture's identifiable assets and liabilifies Goodwill arising on the acquisition of joint ventures Is included in ‘Investrments
in joint ventures’ and is not tested separately for impairment. See note 20

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of interests in associates when the cost of investment exceeds NEX's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of associales is included in ‘investments in associates’ and
is not tested separately for mpairment. See note 21.

Where the Group makes an acquisition and the halances are reported as prowisional at the year end, the Group has a measurement
period of up to 12 months from the date of acquisition to finalise the provisional amounts where new information becomes available about
facts and circumstances that existed at the balance sheet date, which could impact the value of goodwill and intangible assets arising on
consolidation. The measurement period ends as soon as the information required is received

On disposal of a subsidiary, joint venture or associate, the atributable goodwill is included in the calcuiation of the profit or loss on disposal.
{il) Separately identifiabie intangible assets ‘

The Group has recognised separately identified intangible assets on acquisitions where appropriate These generally include client
contracts and dlient relationships. Intangible assets agquired by the Group are stated initially &t fair value and are adjusted subsequently
for amortisation and any impaiment.

Amortisation and impaimment of intangibles arising on consolidation are recognised in the ‘Acquisitions, disposats and similar items’ column
of the consolidated income statement. Where an impairment has taken place, the asset is reviewed annually for any reversal of the
impairment. Any reversals of impairment are credited to the consolidated income statement. All separately identifiable intangible assets
have a finite life (excluding goodwill),

Amoriisation of separately identifiable intangtble assets is charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-ine basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Client relationships 2 — 10 years

Client contracts Period of contract

Other intangible assets Period of contract

A deferred tax liability is recognised against the asset for which the amortisation is non-tax deductible. The liability unwinds over the same
period as the asset is amortised.

(iil} Impalment

Goodwill 15 not amortised but is fested for impaimment annually and whenever there is an indicator of impairment. Goodwill and other
intangible assets arising on consglidation are allocated to a cash generating unit (CGU) at acquisition for impairment testing, which I1s
undertaken at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The identification of CGUs is reviewed
where there is a significant change to the Group's segmental reporting structure Impairment testing is performed by comparing the
recoverable amount of a CGU with its carrying amount. The cammying amount of a CGU is based on the assets and liabilities of each CGU,
including attributabie goodwill. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use (VIU)
ViU is the present value of the expected future cash fiows from a CGU

Where the carrying value of the asset exceeds its VIU, an impairment charge is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement, and the asset is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For goodwill, impairment charges previously recognised
are not reversed and impaired intangible assets are reviewed annually for reversal of previously recognised impairment,

This process requires the exercise of significant estimation by management; if the estimates made prove to be incormrect or performance
does not meet expectations which affect the amount and timing of future cash flows, goodwill and intangible assets may become impaired
in future pencds
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13. Intangible assets arising on consolidation continued

{a) Intangible assets arising on consolidation

Goodwil Oty Tot
_Group En 5 ] [ ]
‘Cost
As at-1 April 2017 L 1,162 543 1,806
_Re-estimate e - 2)
Exchange adjustments {84) ) @5
As at 31 March 2018 1,076 842 1,718
Amortisation and impairment . _ .
As at 1 April 2017 o 154 425 m
Amortisation charge for the year - 3 3
As at-31-March 2018 154 [ ] m2
Net book value
As at 31 March 2018 o " 98
Gaocheilt Otver Tola)
_Group (] £ &m
Cost .
As at 1 Apni 2016 %5 oL 1585
Additions B L il 18 110
Exchange adjustments _ ) 106 4 110
As at 31 March 2017 . 1,162 643 1.805
Amortisation and impairment e _
As at 1 Aprii2016 . 154 605 759
Amartisation charge for the year _ - 20 20
As at 31 March 2017 154 625 778
Net book value e
As at 31 March 2017 - 1,008 18 1,026

The Group recognises £936 million of intangible assets arising on consolidation (2016/17: £1,026 million), with £622 mitlion relating to
goodwill (2016/17: £1,008 million) and £14 million reiating to other intangible assets (2016/17: £18 million). The other intangible assets
mainly represent client relationships and have varying remaining amortisation penods across CGUs.
The individuat CGUs’ goodwill, other intangible assets arising on consolidation and net assets were tested for impairment, which resutted
in no impaimment. Goodwill and other intangible assets ansing on consolidation in relation to ENSCO is most sensitive to the estimates made
in the impairment test. See the judgments ard estimates section within the basis of preparation for more information.

{b) Impairment testing of intangible assets arising on consolidation

Group A 3t 31 March %18

% of tnax |

goodwik Nat book

andother  Goodwsl Oter vahe
folc1}] Operating segmant Intangibles tm o £m
Abide Financral o NEX Optimisation - 2 2 - LN
BrokerTec __ NEXMarkets 18 147 - 147
EBS - NEX Markets 39 365 - 365
ENSO _ _ NEX Optimisation 9 68 14 82
Reset NEX Optimisation 16 1650 - 180
TriQptima NEX Optimisation ) 7 k=) - =]
Traiana NEX Optirnisation - 12 108 - 108
Total 100 sz 14 936
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13. Intangible assets arising on consolidation continued

Group As o 31 Marcn 3017

o O Wt

goodwit Net book

and gthar Goadeil Othes waiue
ooU Cperating sagment intangibles £m Em £m
Abide Financial ______ NEXOptmisation _ 2 # - 21
BrokerTec NEX Markets - 14 146 - T4
EBS NEX Markets 40 411 — 411
ENSO 7 NEX Optimisation - ) 78 17 95
Reset T T NEX Optimisation A7 168 - 168
TriOptima NEX Optimisation -] 62 - 62
Traiana L NEX Optimisation 12 122 1 123
Total 100 1,008 18 1,026
Impairment testing methodology

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined using VIU calculations. The VIU calculations are based on discounting management's
pre-tax cash flow projections for the CGL. The pre-tax discount rate used is the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) NEX allocates
to investments in the businesses within which the CGU operates A long-term growth rate estimate is used to extrapolate the cash

fiows in perpetuity because of the long-term nature of the businesses in the CGUSs.

Group Eroowst v Long-tenm growth rate

e 007 e 217
Kary assumptions % » % %
Abide Financial 8.6 8.5 39 39
BrokerTec = L 82 az 41 43
EBS . o 8.2 82 39 39
ENSO ) . ) 81 8.1 43 4.4
Reset B B L 8.5 8.2 0.0 0.0
TriOptima o 7.6 76 39 42
Traiana 81 8.1 43 4.4
Discount rates

The Group's pre-tax WACC was 8.0% (2016/17: 8.0%). The Group's WACC is a function of the Group's cost of equity, derived using a
Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM), and the Group's cost of debt, The cost of equity estimate depended on inputs in the CAPM reflecting
several variables including the risk-free rate and a premium to reflect the inherent risk of the business being evaluated. These inputs are
based on the market's assessment of economic variables and management judgment, which are subject to scrutiny by the GFC and the
Audit Committee. Al inputs to the CAPM were externally sourced. The CGU-specific WACCs were then derived by adjusting the Group
WACC for business-spedific risk factors.

Nominal long-term growth rate
The growth rate reflects weighted average real GDP growth and inflation for the cauntries within which the CGUs operate. The rates are

based on the Intemational Monetary Fund's medium-term forecasts as they are deemed to be reliable estimates of likely future trends.
The rates applied do not exceed the expecied growth in the local economy or, for businesses which operate on a giobal scale, the global
GDP.

Management's judgement in estimating the cash flows of a CGU

The cash fiow projections for each CGU are based on plans approved by the board For the 2017/18 annual impaimrment testing,
management's cash flow projections for the three years ending 31 March 2021 were used, after which a ferminal value is applied The
cash flow projections include estimates of market volume and market share as well as cost and price development
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14. Provisions

A provision is recognised where there is a present obligation, either legal or constructive, as a resuit of a past event for which it is probable
there will be a transfer of economic benefits to settie the obligation. A provision Is recognised only where a reliable estimate can be made
of the value of the obligation. Disclosure is not made for provisions where that disclosure would be seriously prejudicial. Judgments applied
in concluding that an item should be classified as a contingent liability as opposed to a provision are confirmed after consultation with
external counsel and discussion with the Audit Committee,

Regylatory
Legat Other Toand
Group Em m im £m &
As at1 April 2017 S 5 2 - 15 22
Amounts recognised in the income statement o - » 8 2 46
Settled during the year e {5) - - [t4] {1
Reclassified from accryals 1 - - - 1
As at 31 March 2018 1 38 [ ] 10 57
Reguiatory
Restructuring matiers Legal Otiver Total
Group £m Em Em £m
As at 1 April 2016 10 2 - ] 21
Amounts recognised in the income statement {3} - - 22 19
Settled during the year ) 3 - - {18) (21}
Reclassified from accruals L ) - - - 1 1
Exchange adjustments S 1 = - 1 2
As at 31 March 2017 5 2 — 15 2

Amounts recognised in the income statement dunng the year include the setiement of a civil lawsuit and regulatory lawsuit, both in reiation
to the setting of USD ISDAFIX rates (note 3).

Total provisions of £57 million (2016/%7: £22 million} comprise £12 million (2016/17: £12 million) of non-current provisions and £45 million
(2016/17: £10 miflion) of current provisions. The expected maturity profile of the contractual provisions, which in the current and prior year
comprised restructuring provisions, is disclosed in note 17.

156. Contingent Habilities, contractual commitments and guarantees

The Group's contingent liabilities include possible obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence, of non-occurrence, of one or more uncettain future events not wholly within the control of NEX, Addibonally, contingent
liabilites also include present obligations that have arisen from past events but are not recognised because itis not probabie that setlement
will require the outflow of economic benefits, or because the amount of the obligations cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities
are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the probability of the outflow of the Group's economic resources is
remote.

The Group's contingent assets include possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occumence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of NEX. Unless the realisation of income
1S virtually certain, contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed.

Judgments applied in concluding the apprapriateness of contingent liabikties and assets disclosure are confirmed after discussion with the
Audit Committee and, where appropriate, consultation with external counsel.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the consclidated income staternent on a straight-line basis over the lease term No assets are
held under finance leases

(a) Contingent liabilities

Beginning 25 November 2015, ICM was named as a defendant, along with a number of banks and Tradeweb Markets LLC, in ten civ
lawsuits relating to the interest rates swaps market. Eight of the lawsuits are class actions by alleged investors in the market, and the other
two are single plaintiff cases brought by failed competitors. All of the suits make allegations that defendants together colluded to prevent
buy side clients from accessing the interest rates swaps market on electronic, exchange-like platforms, including the boycott of any platform
offenng all-ko-all trading. The actions generaily assert claims of violation of antitrust laws and unjust enrichment The cases have been
consolidated and are being managed by the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York  All defendants filed motions
to dismiss the compiaints for fadure to state a claim on 4 November 2016 Plaintiffs then filed an amended complaint which, among other
things, added ICAP SEF (US) LLC and ICAP Global Derivatives Limited (both of which were sold to TP [CAP) as defendants. Al
defendants filed new motions to dismiss on 29 January 2017. On 28 July 2017, the court issued a decision dismissing all claims as to ICM,
as well as the two TP ICAP entities The court also dismissed clams against Tradeweb and HSBC. While certain of the claims were
disrmissed agaimnst the other banks, the balance of the lawsuit is proceeding as to the banks While there 1s no present indication that
plaintiffs will seek to appeal the dismissal of the aforementioned entities from the suit, or otherwise seek to rejoin them in the itigation, it
is not possible to predict the outcome of these litrgations or to provide an estimate of any potential liability or financial impact on the Group

From time to tme the Company, or its subsidiaries, are engaged in litigation in relation to a variety of matters, and are also required to
provide information to regulators and other government agencies as part of informal and format inquines or market reviews

Details of regulatory and other matters that have a provision recognised for them are detailed in note 14.
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(b) Contractual commitments
Operating lease commitments

At the end of the financial year, the Group had outstanding cornmitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lkeases which fall due as surnmarised in the table below.,

As m Az

31 March 31 waeh

1R mzy

Grouyp Em

Within one year ) - 18

Between one and five years 59 45
After five years - s 5

243 58

Operating lease commitments relate to the rental of premises for office space in the UK, US, Asia Pacific and Sweden. The operating
lease commitments include onerous lease provisions before estimated receipts under non-cancellable subleases. The increase in the year
is due to the fact that in 2017 NEX sighed a 15-year lease for an office in New York and a 20-year lease for an office in London.

Guarantees

In the nomal course of business certain Group companies enter into guarantees and indemnities to cover property guarantees, seller
indemnities, the use of third-party services/software and Group subsidiaries’ liabilities in order o quality for audit exemption under section
479A to 478C of the Companies Act 2006. It is not possible to quantify the extent of any potential liabilities, but there are none currently
expected to have a material impact on the Group's consolidated results or net assets. As at 31 March 2018, the Group has given £319
million (2016/17: £199 million} of guarantees to counterparties. Of the £319 million (2016/17; £199 million}, £86 million (2016/17: £87
million) rejates to guarantees of Group subsidiaries’ liabilities in order to qualify for audit exemption and £138 million (2016/17: £nil) relates
to intercompany guarantees of external borrowings Guarantees as at 31 March 2017 have been restated due to a comection,

16. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently reviewed for recoverability. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
onginal terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debior will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments, are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provisiqn Is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the future cash flows. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced using a provision for doubtfuf debt, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement within
‘operating expenses’. When a trade receivable is defermined to be uncollectable, it is wnten off against the allowance account for trade
receivables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against ‘Operating expenses’ in the consolidated income:
staternent.

Loans and receivables are non-dervative financial instruments which have a fixed or determinable value. They are recognised at
amortised cost, less any provisions for impairment in their value.

Fair value through profit or loss assets are designated as such where they meet the conditions of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ They are recognised initially at fair value and any subsequent changes in fair value are recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement. These assets are usually held for short-term gain, or are financial instruments not designated as
hedges. The accounting pelicy for derivative financial instruments is included in note 26.

Matched principal fransactions are those where the Group acts in a non-advisory capacity as principal in the commitment to purchase and
sell securities and other financial instruments through two or more transactions between our clients. Substantially all matched principal
receivables and payables (note 16) setle within a short period of time, usually within three days of the trade date. The Group judges that
an accaunting palicy of recognition at settlement date s most appropriate for matched pnncipal receivables and payables.

Financial instruments not held at fair value are impaired where there is objective evidence that the value may be impaired. The amount of
the impairment is calculated as the difference between the carrying value and the present value of any expected future cash flows, with
any impairment being recognised in the consolidated income statement Subsequent recovery of amounts previously impaired are credited
to the consolidated income statement
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16. Trade and other receivables continued
(a) Non-current and curront recelvables

Crougt Company
As As gt
= 3 Manch ot 31 March
3 March riuts 39 March 2007
wis [ 208
Group o {restated) £m {restated)
Non-current receivables —
Deposits 3 3 = -
Derivative financial ingtruments 1 _8 1 8
Other receivables . } 30 36 23 30
M 47 24 38
Current recelvables _ )
Matched principal trade receivables 4 - - -
Other trade receivables L4 w - -
Impairment of other trade receivables - - - -
Amounts owed by affiliates _ as7 416 348 353
Amounts owed by subsidiaries = - 306 327
Amounts owed by assaciates - 4 3 4 4
Amounits owed by other related parties F 1 - =
Derivative financial instruments 20 6 20 5
Other receivables L j 48 40 - 12
Prepayments T 16 18 S
560 881 702

The consolidated and Company baiance sheets as at 31 March 2017 have been restated due to a reclassfication of a cumrent other
receivable to a non-curent gther receivable See note 2 for more information,

Qther current receivables as at 31 March 2018 includes the insurance receivable of £8 million (2016/17. £nil) in relation to a civil lawsuit
for the setting of USD ISDAFIX rates (note 3).

Other current receivables as at 31 March 2018 is net of £3 million which relates to periods for the year ended 31 March 2017 and earlier
due to a comection on historic foreign exchange swap balances. Non-current other receivables as at 31 March 2018 is net of £3 million
which relates fo periods for the year ended 31 March 2017 and earfier due to the discounting of a receivable balance

(b} Credit risk management

Group

The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties in respect of its matched principal, exchange-traded
and corporate treasury operations The Group does not bear any significant concentration risk to either counterparts or markets. The credit
risk in respect of the NEX Markets (excluding the matched principal business) and the NEX Optimisation businesses Is limited to the
collection of outstanding transaction fees and this is managed proactively by the Group's accounts receivable function with oversight from
the independent credit risk function.

The matched principal business involves the Group acting as a counterparty on trades which are undertaken on a delivery versus payment
basis. The Group manages its credit risk in these transactions through appropnate policies and procedures to mitigate this risk including
on-boarding requirements, setting appropriate credit limits for all counterparts which are closely monitored by the credit risk team to restrict
any potential loss through counterparty default. The Group's matched principal counterparty exposure at any given point throughout the
year is spiit evenly between investment grade counterparts (rated BBB-/Baa3 or above) and sub-investment grade counterparts (rated
BB+Ba1 or lower)

The credit nsk on core cash, cash equivalents and derwvative financial instruments is monitored daily. All financial institufions that are

transacted with for borrowings and deposits are approved by the GFC and internal limits are assigned to each one based on a combination
of factors including extemnal credit ratings. Most of cash and cash equivalents are deposited with investment grade rated financial

institutions

Company

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties This nsk is considered minimal as all
counterparties are Group companies and the risk of non-payment is viewed as low

(c) Impairment of other trade receivables

Other trade receivables represent amounts receivable in respect of agency business and information services. All recevables are
indivdually assessed for impairment at the reporting date Management judgment is applied in determining whether there 1s objective
evidence that a loss event has occurred and, if so, the measurement of the impairment allowance. In determining whether there 1s objective
evidence that a loss event has occurred, judgment is exercised in evaluating all relevant information on indicators of impairment, which 1s
not restricted to the consideration of whether payments are contractually past due but includes broader consideration of factors indicating
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deterioration in the financial condition and outlook of clients affecting their ability to pay. For those receivables where objective evidence
of impairment exists, management determines the size of the allowance required based on a range of factors including probability of

16. Trade and other receivables continued

default and, if defaulted, expectation of recovery. If in a subseguent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurming after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impaimentloss is reversed
and the reversal is recognised in the income statement. As at 31 March 2018, £nil of other trade receivables are impaired (2016/17: £nil).
There have been no new impainments during the year,

Past due but not impaired trade and other receivables are those in respect of which the debtor has failed to make a payment or a partial
payment in accordance with the contractuad ferms of the invoice, but there is no major concern over the credit worthiness of the
counterparty, therefore they are not impaired. In the prior reporting periods, receivables past a ‘normal setttemant date’ were considered
past due and were reported on that basis. The table below summariges the other trade receivables that were past due but not impawed,

A at
Asnt 31 March
I Mah Wy
o on
Group #m (rastrted)
Not overdue or less than 30 days overdue T ] (] 45
Over 30 days, but less than 90 days overdue . . | 24
Over 90 days, but less than 180 days gverdue 3 4
Over 180 days overdue L 2 2
v 76
(d) Trade receivables by currency
The table below shows the concentration of the Group's continuing trade receivables by currency
Trade receivables as at 31 March 2018
. Poome Othar
starding Dotisr Euro Y curmanciss Total
Group m [ ] £m £m &m £m
Matched principal trade receivables - 4 - - - 4
Other trade receivables . ~ 10 8 T 1 1 ”
10 &2 7 1 1 3]
Trade receivables as at 31 March 2017
Pound Cthar
starfing Oollar Euo Yen curmncies Total
Group £m am om Em Em £m
Other trade receivables . 6 _ 61 7 1 1 76
i 6 B1 7 1 1 76
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17. Trade and other payabies

Accounts payable are recognised inttially at fair value based on the amounts exchanged and subsequentty held at amortised cost The
accounting policies for matched principal fransactions are induded within the trade and other receivables note (note 16). Details of the

accounting policy relating to derivative financial instruments is included in note 26.

(@) Non-current and current payables

Growp Company
An mt An As at As el
3 Mmech 31 Mach ¥ tharch 31 March
2 o 2018 207
Group o [ £ B
Non-current payables ' ’
Contingent consideration 12 27 - —
Amounts owed fo affiliates 580 580 -] 580
Defarred consideration 14 15 - —
Other payables 15 18 - -
Deferred income 2 1 - _
823 641 5 580
Current payables
Matched principal frade payables 8 1 - -
Other trade payables 10 16 - -
Amounts owed to affiliates - 2 550 W 550
Amounts owed to subsidlaries - - "7 648
Amounts owed to associates 1 - - -
Amounts owed to related parties B - - 1 - =
Derivative financial instruments . 3 11 3 "
Accruals 9% 17 2 9
Other tax and social secunty 18 12 - -
Deferred income 4 29 - -
Other payables . o 5 7 - -
563 744 | 1,218

Other tax and social security as at 31 March 2018 includes £3 million which relates to periods for the year ended 31 March 2017 and

earlier due to the accrual of employer national insurance contributions on share awards.

As al 31 March 2018 the fair value of frade and cther payables is not materially different from their book values.

The estimate of contingent consideration involves the use of budgets of the entities to which the contingent consideration relates and
management's estimation of the probability of the budgets being met. This involves inherent uncertainty because management needs to
forecast uptake for often new disruptive technolegies where uncertain competition, regulation, delivery of product and demand from clients
can impact the timing and price of services provided. This estimate may need to be revised as cincumstances change.

(b) Maturity of financial liabilitles included within trade and other payables and provisions
The table below shows the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities included wrthin frade and other payables based on the

contractual amount payable on the date of repayment

Maturity of financial liabilities included within trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2018

Losa than  Thiee monitrs Comto  Greatarshan

Eheee msacdhs 1o ons year five yoars five years Total

Group Em Em km tm m
Matched principal trade payables o & - - - 5
Other trade payables 10 - - - 10
Derivative financial instruments 2 a - - 3
Amounts owed to affiliates 392 - - 580 972
Amounts owed o associates o 1 - - - _1
Other payables . 3 - 15 - 20
Contingent consideration ) T - - 2 - 12
Deferred consideration ) - - 14 - 14
Provisions (note 14) ) 1 - - - 1
Accruals B [ 8 - - 95
502 10 49 580 1,133
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17. Trade and other continued

Maturity of financial liabilities included within trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2017

Less than three Three months ic {new  Greater than
months o yrar five years five years Tatal
Group ™ e £m Em £m
Matched principal trade payables 1 — — — 1
Other trade payables 15 1 - - .16
Derivative financial instruments. 4 7 - - 11
Amounts owed to affiliates 550 = =80 - 1130
Amounts owed to related parties i 1 - - R 1
Other payables _ 6 2 17 - 25
Contingent consideration - - B _ — =7 — 57
Deferred consideration - - 15 - 15
Provisions {note 14) = ) 1 — e
Accruyals 49 68 — - 117
626 82 640 - 1,348

The gross amounts payable have been disclosed above, rather than their net present value. Based on their shori-term nature there is no
material difference between the net present value and gross amount of the balances disclosed above

Company
Maturity of financial liabilities included within trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2018
Ledethen  Thews months Onato  Greater than
Hros soniine 10 0N Year frvs yours five yours Tobal
Company £m £m £m [~ tm
Accruals - 2 - - 2
Derivative financial instruments 1 2 - - 3
Amounts owed to Group companies 888 - 580 - 1468
_ 888 4 560 - 1473
Maturity of financlal liabllites included within trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2017
l:;‘ss than Three months to Onemtn  Gieater than
thiee months ane year five yaars five yoars Tota
Company £m En £m Em £m
Accruals - - 9 - = 9
Derivative financial instruments 3 8 = - 1.
Amounts owed to Group companies B 1,198 - 580 - 1,778
1.201 17 580 - 1,768

18. Financial assets and liabllities
Group
(a) Financial assets

The carrying value less impairment of current frade receivables and payables 1s assumed to approximate their fair values due to their
short-term nature. As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the fair values of financial assets are not materially different from their book values.

Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2018

Group

Cash and cash equivalents (note 10)
Restricted funds (note 10)
Available-for-sale invesiments (note 23}
Matched principal trade receivables
Deposits

Other trade receivables _
Amounts owed from other related partes
Amounts owed from affiiates

Amounts owed from associates
Derivative financial instruments

Other receivables

Falr value
ph profit Losns and
and jossd foraade  receivables Total
Em Em £m £m
) - - % 260
) - = 18 18
) - 17 - 17
o - - 4 4
- - 3 3
= = 7 77
- - 2 2
- - 357 367
= - 4 4
2 - = 21
= - 78 18
21 17 82 B850
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18. Financial assets and liabilities continued
Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2017

Fair value
through profit Aylable- Laars antg

and laes torgals  roconvRbins Tolal

Groug {restated} Em 6m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents {note 10) - - 321 321
Restricted funds {note 10} ] ~ - - 102 102
Available-for-sale investrnents (nofe 22} _ - 24 o Zi
Deposits o - - 3 3
Other trade receivables - - 76 76
Amounts owed from other related parties . o - - 1 1
Amounts owed from affiliates - - 416 = 416
Amounts owed from associates o - - 3 '3
Derivative financial instruments e 14 - = 14
Other receivables . . - - 78 76
14 21 998 1,033

Fair value through profit and loss includes derivatives that are designated in hedging relationships (note 26).
Financial assets can be reconciled to the balance sheet as follows:

An ol

As ot 31 March

3t Mierh: anT

018 tm

Grovp ™ (restated)

Current recervables (note 16) 560

Non-current receivables (note 16) . 47

Available-for-sale financial investments (note 22) o 17 21
Cash and cash equivalents including restricted funds (note 10) 28/ 423

Excluded: .
Prepayments (note 16} ) (16) (18}
850 1,033

Financial assets for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been resiated due to the reclassification of a current other receivable to a non-
current other receivable. See note 2 for more information.

Prepayrments are not defined as financial assets under |AS 39.
(b) Financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the farr values of financial liabilities are not materially different from their book values except for the fair
value of the five-year senior notes repayable 2019 (note 9).

Classification of financial Kabilittes

As «t 31 March 20123 As at 31 March 2017
Falr vatoa Far value
Uwough profit Amartised through profit Amorused
nd oas ot Totet > luea caat Tutal
Group (] im Em £m Em Em
Matched principal {rade payables - 5 5 - .1 1
Other trade payables - 10 10 - 18 16
Derivative financial instruments . 3 - 3 _ N - 11
Amounts owed to affiliates - 972 972 - 1,130 1,130
Amounts owed tc associafes _ - 1 1 - - =
Amounts owed to refated parties - - - - 1 1
Other payables . ) - 20 20 - 26 25
Contingent consideration - - 12 12 - 27 27
Deferred consideration - 14 14 - 15 15
Accruals - 96 ] - W7 "7
Borrowings and overdrafis (note 9} o= 3 373 - 370 370
Provisions (note 14)* - 1 1 - 4 5
3 1,503 1,506 11 1,707 1,718

* Excludes non-contractual provisions
Farr value through profit and loss includes derivatives that are designated in hedging relationships (note 26).
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18. Financial assets and liabilities continued
Financial liabilities can be reconciled to the balance sheet as shown in the tabie below.

As =t As 2
HMMereh 3 Mach
M 2017
Group Ken £m
Current payables {note 17) ) - 563 744
Non-current payables (note 17) o o 623 641
Borrowings and overdrafts (note 9) Ere] 370
Provisions (note 14)* ) 1 5
Excluded: —
Other tax and social security {note 17} B . (18) 12}
Deferred income (note 17) {29} {30
1,506 1,718

* Exchades non-contractusl provisions

Other tax and social security, deferred income and provisions other than restructuring provisions are not classified as financial liabilities

under IAS 39

Company
{c) Financial assets and liabilities
The Company’s financial assels and liabilities are analysed in the table below.

Pair vake
through proft  Avallabie-  Lodes and
and lkay forssie  reoshables Towl
Company o &m m €m
Cash and cash equivalents (note 10} i T — - [) 80
Available-for-sale mvestments (note 22) - 2 - 2
Amounts owed by Group companies o . - - 658 658
Derivative financial instruments 2 - - 2
Other receivables - - -] 23
2 2 N 784
Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2017
ST Fair vahm T a
throughprofit  Available-  {oans and
e foresile  rrcshesbies Total
Compamy Em [ £m [
Cash and cash equivalents (note 10) - - 159 159
Available-for-sale investments {note 22} - 2 - 2
Amounts owed by Group companies - = 684 684
Derivative financial instruments 14 - - 14
Other receivables ~ - - 42 42
—_— 14 2 885 201
Fair value through profit and loss includes derivatives that are designated in hedging relationships (note 26).
Tax receivable is not considered to be a financial asset.
An at A ol
31 Mah 31 March
s Flv) g
Campany Em Em
Current receivables (note 16} T T 681 702
Non-current receivables (note 16) L 24 38
Available-for-sale financial investments (note 22) 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents including restricted funds (note 10) 80 159
Excludedr .
Prepayments {note 16) ) ; {3) —
__TH4 901
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18. Financial assets and liabilities continued
Classification of financial liabilities

As at 31 Narch X1 As at 31 March 2017
Falr value Far valoe
through profit Amortised thyough profit Amortsed

mwd doum coxd “Fokn) and loss o35t Total
Company Em: Em o im Em £m
Borrowings (note G) _ - n 73 - 370 370
Agcruals - Fi 2 - 9 9
Derivative financial instruments 3 - 3 0N - 11
Amounts owed to Group companies - 1468 1,48 - 1,778 1778
3 1,843 1,546 11 2,157 2168

Fair value through profit and ioss includes derivatives that are designated in hedging relationships (note 26).
The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is not materially different from their book values,

19. Principal subsidiaries

An entity is regarded as a subsidiary if the Group has confrol over its strategic, operating and financial policies and intends to hold the
invesiment on a long-term basis to secure a contribution to the Group's activities.
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
habilities incurred by the Group to the foormer owners of the acquire and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of

the acquiree

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously-held interests in the acquired entity is remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value and the resutting gain or loss, if any, s recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where
such treatment woulkd be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

{8) Investmentin subsidiaries — Company

2nTrans 20162017
‘gm __m'
As & 1 April T 3233 4406
Additions . R 57 586
Disposal B ) = {1,233}
impaimnent _ o ~ (5636
As at 31 March 3,216 3,233
(b} Principal subsidiaries

A complete list of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is given in note 2%. The Company’s principal subsidiaries, their country of
incorporation and the Group’s ownership are listed below.

% hola
England and Wales ____Abide Financial Limited N - 931
o . BrokerTec Eurcpe Limited 100
- ~ EBS Group Limited T I .
NEX Data Services Limited 100

i NEX Exchange Limited 100
_ NEX SEF Limited 100

- NEX Setvices Limied L B _ 100
Israel EBS Financial Technologies Ltd. ~ — 100
Traiana Technologies Ltd. N o __ B6.7

Singapore __NEX Services Pte Limited - 100
Reset Private Limited _ 100

Sweden _ _ _ _ TriOptima AB ) 100
Switzertand EBS Service Company Limited 100
United States BrokerTec Americas LLC - 100
o _ ENSQ Financial Management LLP 100
_ NEX Services North America LLC 100
867

Traiana, Inc.
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19. Principal subsidiaries continued

The percentage held represents the percentage of issued ordinary share capial held (all classes) and represents the veting rights of the
Company. All principal subsidiaries have a 31 March year end. All companies operate in their country of incorporation. BrokerTec Europe
Limited, EBS Group Limited, Reset Private Limited and BrokerTec Americas LL.C also operate from branches outside their countries of

incarporation.
The accurmulated non-controlling interests of the Traiana entities as at 31 March 2018 is £23 million (2016/17 £24 million).
(c) UK subsidiaries exempt from audit requirements

The foilowing UK subsidiaries of the Company have taken advantage of the exemption allowed from the requirements for the audit of their
individual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 under section 479A to section 479C of the Companies Act 2006. The
exemption is on the basis of the Company providing a guarantee of those companies’ liabilities as at 31 March 2018,

Linbliithes Lusibnfitven
as at ¥1 March 2018 as af 31 bhwch 2017
undar guarantes guarintee
or sz guaranined or as gugrgteed
Ragistarad number £ £
Capital Shipbrokers LLP 0GC318682 261,167 133,244
ENSOG (UK) Limited 08565508 o 3,045,521 -
Godsell Astiey and Pearce (Hokiings) Limited 01438662 T 1037396 =
intercapital No. 1 Limited 06173794 o 3965207 60,429,251
infercapital No, 2 Limited (0774629 __“ 73980 0477628 -
Intercapital No. 3 Limited 02062368 0908173 . 22,726,369 _
Midhurst Chartering Limited 07817554 0T70. 396618

31,643,206 86,163,110

Total liabiities guaranteed of £31,643,206 (2016/17: £86,153,110) includes £30,276,318 (2016/17- £84,327 014) due to entities in the
NEX Group and £1,366,888 (2016/17: £1,836,086) due to third parties outside the NEX Group. The above liabilities guaranteed are
included in the guarantees made by the Group as disclosed in note 15.

20. Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture 1s an entity in which the Group has an interest and, in the opinion of the directors, exercises joint contro! over its operating
and financial policies. An interest exists where an investment is held on a long-term basis to secure a contribution to the Group's activities
Invesiments in joint ventures are recognised using the equity method. Under this method, such investments are initially stated at cost,
including attributable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group's share of net assets,
Investrments in joint ventures are reviewed for indicators of impairment under IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’. Whenever application of IAS 39 indicates that an investment may be mpatred, the camrying amount of the investment,
including attributed goodwill, is tested for impairment as a single asset under 1AS 36, by comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (the higher of VIU and fair value less costs to sale).

(a) Movements in investments in joint ventures

201718 1817
Em Em
Asat1Apil 1 N
Impainmentexpense L m. -
As at 31 March o -
The impaiment expense of £1 million (2016/17. £nil) for the year ended 31 March 2018 relates to TFS-ICAP LLC
{b) Summary financial information of joint ventures
The Group's share of joint ventures’ assets, liabilities and profit is given below.
o Ax a1 As at
31 March 31 March
2019 2M7
&m Cm
Assets . o o 1 1
(iabilites ) () =
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20. Investment in joint ventures continued

Year ercisd Year endad
31 March 3t March

s sl
Emmt Em
Continuing operations: B S _
Revenue . o . 1 2
Operating expenses ] . ) {1 2)
Share of profit of joint ventures after tax - -
(c} Country of incorporation
The Group's joint ventures and their country of incorporation are listed below,
An n 31 Asat 31
Mach W8 March 2017 Principal
Ghheld} (% he) sty
United States TFSICAP Holdings Inc - 450 45.0 Broking
TFSICAP LLC . 240 2390 Broking

All joint ventures have a 31 December year end. The difference in the joint ventures’ year ends to the Group's year end is not considered
to have a material impact on thelr results.

21. Investment in associates

The Group classifies investments in entiies over which it has significant influence, but not gontrol, and that are neither subsidiaries nor
joint ventures, as associates.

Investments in associates are recognised using the equity method. Under this method, such investments are initially stated at cost,
including attributable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group's share of net assets.
Investments in associates are reviewed for indicators of impairment under IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'.
Whenever application of IAS 39 indicates that an investment may be impaired, the carrying amount of the investment, including attributed
goodwill, is tested for impairment as a single asset under IAS 36, by comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable amount (higher
of VIU and fair value less costs to sell).

(a) Movements in investments in associates

20170 20187

om Em

As at 1 Aprl — 32 45
Additions i 8 S
Share of profit/(loss) for the year 2 (3
Dividends received — - ) =
Transfer to subsidiary _ e = {19)
Exchange adjustments . R [£) 4
As at 31 March — L 32

During the year, the Group mvested £6 million in existing associates Duco Technology Limited and Research Exchange Limited, which
are both NEX Optimisation associates.

£2 million of the share of profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 relates to periods for the year ended 31 March 2017 and earlier due to
an equity accounting correction.

(b) Summary financial information for associates

The Group's share of associates’ assets (excluding goodwill), liabilitias and profit for continuing operations is given below.

As at As al

31 March 31 March

2018 2017

(4] im

Assets . D o 28
Liabiities , an__ on
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21. Investment in assoclates continued

Year anded Year ended
31 March 31 March

iote T
tm £m
Continuing operations - o
Revenue o o F ] 21
QOperating expenses e . {28 (4
Profit before tax - - —— _2 3)
Share of profit of associates after tax B 2 (3)
{c} Country of incorporation
The Group’s associates and their country of incorporation are listed below.
As ot An gt
It March 31 March
»n 17 Princgrl
% twid] (% heid) ity
Cayman Islands BSN Holdings Limited ) =1 25.1 Broking
England and Wales BSN Capital Partners Limited 251 251 Broking
Duco Technology Limited 4.2 444 Optimisation
Research Exchange Limited 283 194 Optimisation
Hong Kong Capital Shipbrokers Limited 2] 50.0 Broking
Singapore Howe Robinson Partners Pte. Limited 6.0 35.0 Broking
United States AcadiaSoft, Inc. &0 25.0 Optimisation
BSN Capital Partners LLC o 251 251 Broking
CLS Aggregation Services LLC ) A28 425 Optimisation
OpenGamma, Inc. 23 27.3 Optimisation

BSN Capital Partners Limited, CLS Aggregation Services LLC and OpenGamma, Inc. have 31 Decernber year ends. Research Exchange
Limited has a 30 September year end The difference in these associates’ year ends from the Group's year end is not considered to have
a material impact on their results. All other associates have a 31 March year end.

22, Available-for-saie investments
The Group classifies investments in entites which are not subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates, as available-for-sale investments,

Available-for-sale financial assets are debt and equity non-derivative financial assets and are initially recognised at fair value.

Available-for-sale investments in equity assets that do not have a quoted market price in an active market whose farr value can be refiably
measured, for instance using a recent funding round, are subsequently recorded at that fair value. Available-for-sale investments in equity
assets that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are subsequently
recorded at cost less impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impainrment loss has been incurred on such fimancial assets, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

All other available-for-sale financial assets are fair valued subsequently at each pericd end. Any subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised directly in other comprebensive income. When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised in other comprehensive ncome and there is objective eviderce that the asset is impaired, the cumulative unrealised loss that
had been recognised in other caomprehensive income is transferred te the consolidated income statement.

Impaiment iosses recagnised in the consolidated income statement for an investment in an available-for-sale equity instrurment are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement. Dividends on available-forsale equity investments are recognised in the
consolidated income staterment when the right to receive payment is established. When an available-for-sale financial asset is
derecognised, any cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised previously in other comprehensive income is transferred to the
consolidated income statement

These assets are generally expected to be held for the long term and are inciuded in non-current assets. Assets such as shares or seats
In exchanges, cash-related instruments, and long-term equity investments that de not qualify as associates or joint ventures, are classified
as avallable-for-sale.

2T 201617
Greup Em im
As at 1 April 21 9
Additions 3 12
Disposals (2 -
impairment expense 3) -
Fair value revaluation ) o -
Exchange adjustments ) -
As at 31 March i i o 17 21
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22. Available-for-sale investments continued

Total available-for-sale investments of £17 million (2016/17: £21 million} comprise £17 million (2016/17. £20 million) of non-curment

available-for-sale investments and £nil (2016/17- £1 mullion) of current available-for-sale investments.
Additions of £3 milfion relate to Exotix Partners LLP and a NEX Opportunities investment in a digital asset trading platform.

As at As at
#1 Mumh 3 Mamn

W0 w7
Groun on Bm
Non-current available-for-sale investments: i
Held at fair value o o ) 3 2
Held at cost less impairment . o 14 18
Toal 17 20
Current available-for-sale investmqug.:_
Held at fair value = 1.
Total » 1

£2 million (2016/17: £3 million) of the fair value was determined using level 1 inputs, being the quoted prices of the invesiments. £1

million (2016/17: £nil) of the fair value was determined using level 2 inputs, being the fair value of a recent funding round.

Asat As at
31 March 1 March
2018 2017
Group £m £m
Listed invesiments . 2 _3
Uniisted investments . B _18
Total available-for-sale investments 17 21
Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the currencies shown in the table betow.
Pourkl
stering Dote Euro Total
£m £m m £m
As at 31 March 2018 L 2 B 2 17
As at 31 March 2017 i 7 n 3 21

23. Property and equipment

Property and equipment is recognised tnitially at cost including the original purchase price of the asset and the costs atiributable to bringing
the asset inte its intended use. Property and equipment is subsequently presented at initial cost less accumulated depreciathon and any
provisions for impaiment in its value. it is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its expected useful economic life as follows:

Short leasehold property improverments Period of lease
Furnure, fixtures and equipment 3-5years

The Group reviews its depreciation rates regularly to take account of any changes in circumstances These rates are determined on

consideration of factors such as the expected rate of technological development and anticipated usage levels.

When a leasehold property becomes surplus to the Group’s foreseeable business requirements, a provision is made on a discounted

basis for the expected future net cost of the property.
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23. Property and equipment continued

Mins 201617
Shont Shorl
laasehond Fumiture, laasshold Fumiture,
proparty  fdums and Ansets vnder property  dodurmm and  Assets under

L p Cidruction Tortad improvaments equpment  comemcion Toteg
Group Em Em €&m Em im Em £im
Cost _— -
As at 1 Aprii ) 54 [ i) 1 48 & 52
Additions - - 18 12 - - 18 18
Reclassification 4 4 {18) - T 11 (18 —
Disposals - - - - - (3) .- (3)
Other movements 16 # - 87 - = - =
Exchange adjustments 2) (10 - 123 1 10 - 1
As at 31 March F1d 109 & """ 64 5 78
Accumulated depreciation S o L
As at 1 Apil o [] 7 - £2 - 72 - 22
Charge for the year 2 12 - “ 2 g - 11
Impairment L - - - - 2 - 2
Disposals - - - - - {3 - {3}
Other movements 15 44 - 59 - - - -
Exchange adjusiments 1) [ - (10} 1 9 - 10
As at 31 March 2t .. - 106 5 7 — 42
Net book value
As at 31 March - 5 » 4 27 5 36

The 2016/17 table has been updated to provide the split between fumiture, fixtures and equipment and assets under construction. The

total colurnn is unchanged from the prior yeal

for the year ended 31 March 2017 and earlier due to adjustments to the carrying values of property and equipment.

24. Share capital

Ordinary shares are recognised in equity as share capital at their nominal value,

(a) lssued share capital

r. The other moverments of net £2 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 relates to periods

Group and Company — allottad, called up and fully pald

As at 1 Apnl 2016 and at 31 March 2017

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017 there were 233,478,001 shares in issue.

25. Reserves

{a) Analysis of consolidated other reserves

2iTHE 201817
Nuwnber of Nomina Number of Nomwnal
shoms vk sharey ﬂu
millions & miflions £m
o 233 233 233

Merger Hadging  Fwvalustion Tota othar
TRAYVE R PRSIV mare
Group om Im tm L]
As at 1 April 2017 - 259 (3) 42 298
Revaluation loss of available-for-sale investments _ - - 1 {1}
Unrealised movement in cash flow hedges - 4 - 4
Realised movement in cash flow hedges - 1 - 1
income tax - (U] - {1}
Reclassification of revaluation reserve - - My (41
As at 31 March 2018 259 1 - 260
Marger Hacging Revaluation Toial othar
rRsery e RI8MNE RsENYe LE:1 -1
Group Em Em Bm B
As at 1 April 2016 _ 259 9) 47 297
Unrealised movement in cash flow hedges - 110} - {10}
Realised movement in cash flow hedges - 7 - 17
Income tax o - {1y - (1}
Merger reserve o KX - = 334
Distribution of discontinued operations (334) - 8y  {339)
As at 31 March 2017 269 (3} 42 208
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25. Reserves continued

The merger reserve was created upon the Group reconstruction in 2008, The hedging reserve arises from fair value movements of
derivative financial instruments that are designated as cash flow hedges on the balance sheet. The revaluation reserve represents
revaluations of available-for-sale investments. The reciassification of revaluation reserve for the year ended 31 March 2018 is due to
amcunts held in the revaluation reserve that relate to historic investments that have been reclassified to retained eamings.

The analysis of consolidated other reserves for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been updated fo provide the split between unrealised
and realised movement in cash flow hedges. The total of these two rows is unchanged from the prior year.

{b) Company reserves
The Company has retained earnings of £1,842 million (2016/17: £1,765 miliion) of which £649 million {2016/17; £647 million) is not
distributable.

26. Currency risk management

The Group uses various financial Instruments as hedges to reduce exposure to FX and interest rate movements. These can include
forward FX contracts, curency options and cross currency swaps. All derivative financial instruments are initially recognised on the
balance sheet at their fair value, adjusted for transacton costs. Where dernvative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement, along with transaction costs.
Where they do qualify, gains and losses are recognised according to the nature of the hedge relationship and the item being hedged.
Hedges are either classified as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or net investment hedges.

The fair values of the Group's denvative financial instruments are determined using appropriate valuation techniques from observable
data, including discounted cash flow analysis, as no active markets with quoted prices exist for the instruments held by the Group.

To qualify for hedge accounting, the terms of the hedge must be documented clearty at inception and there must be an expectation that
the denvative will be highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash fiows affributable to the hedged risk. Hedge
effectiveness 1s tested throughout the life of the hedge and, f at any point it is concluded that the relationship can no longer be
expected to remain highly effective in achieving its objective, the accounting for the hedge relationship is terminated.

Fair value hedges: financial instruments are classified as fair value hedges when they hedge an exposure to changes in the fair value
of a recognised asset or liability that is attributable to a risk that could affect the consolidated income statement. The hedging instrument
is recorded at fair value on the balance sheet, with changes in its fair value being taken through the consolidated income statement. For
periods in which the hedge is shown to be effective, the gain or loss on the hedged item atiributable to the hedged risk adjusts the
carrying amount of the hedged tern and is recognised in the consolidated income statement. The gain or loss refating to the ineffective
portion is recognised in the consclidated income statement. The Group did not use fair value hedges in the current or prior year.

Cash flow hedges: financial nstruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Group's exposure to changes in the
cash flows atiributable to an asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction. Gains or losses on designated cash flow hedges
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, to the extent that they are determined to be effective. Any remaining ineflective
portion of the gain or loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement. On recognition of the hedged asset or liabil-
ity, any gains or losses relating to the hedging instrument that had previcusly been recognised directly in other comprehensive income
are included in the initial measurement of the fair value of the asset or liability. When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss in equity remains there and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the forecast transaction is ubmately recognised When a forecast transaction is no longer ex-
pected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in other comprehensive income 1s transferred immediately to the consoli-
dated income statement.

Net investment hedges: changes in the value of fereign-denominated investments due to currency movements are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income. The accounting treatment for a net investment hedging instrument, whether it is a derivative financial
instrument or a recognised asset or liability on the balance sheet, is consistent with the treatment for a cash flow hedge. Gains and
losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are included in the consolidated income statement on the uitimate disposal of the
foreign-denominated investrnent. The: gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Group

The Group presents its consolidated financial statements in pound sterling and conducts business in several other currencies, principally
the dollar Consequently, the Group is exposed to FX nsk due to exchange rate movements which affect the Group's transacticnal revenue
and the translatiort of the earnings and net assets of its non-pound sterling operations.

(a) Transactional exposures

The Group's policy s far all subsidiaries to hedge their material non-functional currency transactional exposures through a combination of
forward FX confracts and options for up to two years forward. Under this policy, a minimum of 75% of the forecast exposures are hedged
for the first six months, 50% for the fallowing six months and 25% for the next six months Most of these exposures relate to dollar sales
arising in pound sterling functional currency companies

The table below sets out the Group's cutstanding forward FX contracts as at 31 March 2018 which are designated as cash flow hedges.

b3



NEX GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Notes to the financial statements continued

26. Currency risk management continued

Half year to 30 Septembar 2018 Half yoar to 31 March 2018 Half year to 30 Sepiember 2018

Heggaa Hedged Hedged

ampunt  Trarsacun Fak waus amouni  Transachon Farr value amgur  Transaction Far vakie
Currency pair m W £m m i m m Tt £m
NEX Markets
Sell$, buy £ $66 132 3 544 1.36 1 $22 138 1
BuyILS", sell £ — s 43 485 1y IES 29 464 — 514 470 -
Sell €, buy £, €9 1.13 - €6 112 - €3 110 -
NEX Optimisation o ]
Other currency pairs _E21  Various (4 £12  Varous - £6  Various -
Total o 1 1 , 1

{b) Balance sheet translational exposures

The Group is exposed to balance sheet translational exposures at the local entity level where the local consolidated balance sheet may
contain monetary assets or liabilities denominated i a currency other than the entity's functionat curnency. Where material, it is the Group's
policy to hedge 100% of these exposures using a mix of foreign currency swaps and forward FX contracts.

Balance sheet translational exposures also arise on consolidation because of the retranstation of the balance sheet of the Group’s non-
pound stering operations, principally dollar and euro, into pound sterling, the Group's presentational currency. The Group's general policy
is not to actively manage thesa exposures, as active management using instruments with a shorter tenure than the underlying net asset
can give rise to a net cash outflow. However, from time to time it will use forward FX contracts, cross currency swaps or non-pound sterling
denominated borrowings to mitigate these exposures.

As at 31 March 2018 the Group has $nil (2016/17: $235 million) of forward FX contracts, €100 million {2016/17; €100 milion) of the 2019
five-year senior notes and the €15 million (2016/17. €15 million) 2023 ten-year senior notes, designated as hedging instruments against
the underiying dollar and euro exposures respectively. As at 31 March 2018 these exposures were $1.2 billion (2016/17. $1 2 billion) and
€0.1 billion (2016/17: €0.1 billion) including intangible assets arising an consobidation, but before $nil (2016/17: $0.2 billion) and €0.1 billion
(2016/17: €0.1 billion) of hedging.

The table below shows the actual impact on the Group's equiy of year on year movements in the dollar and eurc exchange rates for
transactional and transiatonal exposures. The tabie below also discloses the anticipated impact on the Group's equity of @ 10-cent
weakening in the dollar and euro in terms of transactional and translational exposure. The Group considers 10-cent to be an appropriate
sensitivity measure to disclose since firstly it represents a change that management views as reasonably possible and secondly it provides
a useful base for determining other sensitivities since the Group expects changes would be reasonably |inear.

201611 201817
Daliar Euro TYotal Doltar Bl T;w_"
£ Em Em £m Em £m
Actual impact of year-on-year movement in exchange rate (= 3 (83} 128 ") 137
10-cent weakening 8 3 @) {70} @& __ (7§

{c) Derivative financial instruments

Among other methods, the Group uses derivative financial instruments to implement its FX policy. These include the use of forward FX
contracts to hedge a portion of its transactional dollar and euro exposures and cross cumency interest rale swaps to hedge the FX and
interest rate nsks on its senior notes Where these are designated and documented as cash flow hedges in the context of IAS 39 and are
demonstrated to be effective, mark-to-market gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and transferred to
the consolidated income staternent on derecognition of the underlying item being hedged The table below presents the camrying value of
the Group's derivative financial instruments.

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

Angets Lanbiiitins AsEpi Listnaos

em o m Em
Forward FX contracts — cash flow hedges o -] (2) 3 e
Forward FX contracts — net investment hedges = - 2 -
Forward FX contracts — other 2 ()] 1 {4
Cross currency swaps — cash flow hedges 7 S 8 -
4l (3} 4 (1N

No amounts (2016/17 Enil) were recognised in the consolidated income statement in the year because of ineffective hedges Fair value
hierarchy for the derivative financial instruments is shown below
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26. Currency risk management continued

As at 31 March 2013 As at 31 March 2017

Lavel 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Level 1 Lerved 2 Lerval 3

™ tm £ £m Em £1n

Derivative assets - 21 - -~ 14 _=
Denvative liabilities - ] - - {113 -

In deriving fair value of all derivative instruments as at 31 March 2018, the fair value of observable market data on similar instruments
was used, for example the fair vailue of derivatives with similar tenor, currency, credit risk and security There were no significant inputs
used that were unobservable,

Company

{d) Balance sheet translational exposures

The Company is exposed to balance sheet franslational exposures where the balance sheet contains financial assets or liabilities
denominated in a curency other than pound sterling. While it is the Group's policy fo hedge 100% of these exposures at Group level, at
a Company level these exposures can affect the Company’s profit after tax.

{e} FX exposure

The table below shows the actual impact on the Group's trading operating profit, which is a key metric of the Group, of the movement
during the year of the dollar and euro exchange rates in tenms of translational exposure.

For the year snded 31 March 2018 For #w year ended 31 March 2017

Dotlar Euro Total Doitar Ewn Total

Graup tm €m km m £m £m
Trading operating profit {1 3 2 15 7 22
Other - - - - _ —
Operating profit (1) 3 2 15 7 22

The Group dees not hedge the translation of those profits or losses eamned by its non-pound sterling functional currency companies. The
principal exchange rates which affected the Group, expressed in currency per pound sterling, are shown below

Closng rate  Average mte  Average mte

Closing rate
- asat  yesarended yaar ended
31 March 31 Marth 1% March 3 Marh
218 mr 28 2017
Doiiar - 140 1.25 1.33 .31
Euro 1.14 117 1.14 1.20

The table below shows the impact on the Group's trading operating profit, which is a key metric of the Group, of 2 10-cent appreciation in
the dollar and euro in terms of translational exposure. The Group considers 10-cent to be an appropriate sensitivity measure to disclose
since firstly it represents a change that management views as reasonably possible and secondly it provides a useful base for determining
other sensitivities since the Group expects changes would be reasonably finear.

“Yasranded 1 Narch 2018 Year ended 31 March 2017

Dwliar Euro Total Dollar Cura Total
Group &em £m Em £m £m em
Trading operating profit o . 7 7 14 10 5 18
mr . - 77; - - - -
Operating profit 7 7 14 10 5 15

27. Related party transactions

Group

(a) Related party transactions with the NEX Group

The Group had the following transactions with related parties who are members of the NEX Group

Your anded 1t March 2018

Yearended 3+ March 2017

Management Management

servicos IQIVICES

Imarast (recelved) Intarest {recaived)/

charges provided charges provided

£m )] £m £

Parent company m = ) -
Affiliate companies - (16) 3)
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27. Related party transactions continued
The Group had the following receivable/{payable} balances with related parties who are members of the NEX Group.

L As gt

21 March 31 March

F 2007

m m

Parent company SO - - . 223 230
Affilate companies . B {808) (944)
. (882) (714)

The majority of the Groups’ UK companies are party io a netting agreement. All balances are unsecured.

(b} Other related party transactions

(i) AcadiaSoft, Inc. (AcadiaSoft)

TriOptima has a service share agreement with AcadiaSoft, an associate company. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
recognised income of £4 million (2016/17: £1 million) in relation to this amangement. As at 31 March 2018, the outstandlng balance due
from AcadiaSoft to the Group was £nil (2016/17: £nil).

(i} BSN Holdings Limited and BSN Capital Partners Limited (BSN)

The Group provides BSN, an associate company, with office space and facility services and also has a preferred brokerage agreement
with BSN. Dunng the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group received income of £4 million (2016/17: £3 million) in relation to these
amrangements. As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding balance due to the Group from BSN was £4 million (2016/17: £4 million).

(i) Capital Shipbrokers Limited (Capital Shipbrokers)

The Group is responsible for the debtor management of Capital Shipbrokers, an associate company. As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding
balance due from the Group to Capital Shipbrokers was £0.1 miillion (2018/17: £1 million).

{iv) CLS Aggregation Services LLC {CLSAS)

The Group re-charged CLSAS, an associate company, £1 million {2016/17: £3 million) as compensation for technical services during the
year. As at 31 March 2018 the total outstanding balance due to the Group was £0.2 million (2016/17: £0.4 million).

{v) Duco Technology Limited (Duca)

The Group prowided Duco, an assoclate company, with convertible loans which converted fo shares in Duco during the year. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recognised finance income and a gain on conversion of these loans totalling £0.6 million (2016/17:
£nil. Ducc alse provided the Group with reconciliation services totalling £0.3 million in the year (2016/17: £0.1 million). As at 31 March
2018, the outstanding balance due from Duco to the Group was £nil (2016/17: £1 mullion).

(vi) Exotix Holdings Limited, Exotix (1) Ltd, Exotix Partners LLP and Exotix Investment Partners LLP (Exotix)

As part of the disposal of Exotix to the Group headed by IPGL (a company controlied by Michael Spencer, the Group Chief Executive
Officer) n 2007, the Group loaned employees of Exotix, £1.5 million to enable them to purchase a shareholding. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the Group provided Exotix with another Joan for £0.5 million and the Group collected revenue of £nil (2016/17: £6 million)
on behalf of Exotix. As at 31 March 2018, there was a balance due from Exotix to the Group of £2 milion (2016/17: £1 million).

{vil) Howe Robinson Partners Pte. Limited (Howe Robinson)

The Group collects revenue for Howe Robinson, an associate company. The Group received £1 million during the year (2016/17: £2
million). The Group also provides Howe Robinson with a loan. As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding balance due from Howe Robinson
to the Group was £3 million (2016717 £1 million).

(viii) Research Exchange Limited (RSRCHX)

The Group provided RSRCHX with a convertible loan in the year ended 31 March 2018B. As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding balance
due from RSRCHX to the Group was £2 milion (2016/17; £nil).

Throughout the year, the Group alse had board representation and transactions with other related parties. None of these transactions
were material or had material balances outstanding as at 31 March 2018. Transactions with key management personnel are disclosed in
note 7.

Company

(c) Parent company

The Company’s immediate parent is ICAP plc, which is incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The Company’s uitmate parent
1s NEX Group plc, which is incomporated and domiciled in England and Wales. NEX Group plc heads the largest group of companies of
which the Company is a member that prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs Copies of the consolidated
financial statements of NEX Group ple can be obtalned from the Company Secretary, NEX Group pic, 2 Broadgate, London, EC2M 7UR
or from the NEX website at www.nex.com. The Company heads the smailest group of companies which produce consoldated financial
statements
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27. Related party transactions continued
{d)} Related party transactions with the NEX Group
The Company had the following transactions wath related parties who are members of the NEX Group.

Ak at Ayt

3 March 31 March

me a7

m om

Parent company . et 33
Affiliate companies _ . , - % 9

Amounts owed to the Company from subsidianes are disclosed in note 16 and amounts owed by the Company to subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 17,

28. Post balance sheet events
On 18 May 2018, the NEX shareholders voted to approve the Offer from CME.

In June 2018, Intercapital Capital Markets LLC (ICM) reached a settlement of consolidated class action suits that had been fiied in 2014
against ICM and USD ISDAFIX settling banks alieging a conspiracy in violation of the antitrust faws among the banks and ICM to
manipulate USD ISDAFEX. Pursuant to the settlement, which has received prelminary approval from the Court but remains subject to final
approval, ICM has agreed to pay £8 million ($12 million) without admitting hability on the underlying allegations. ICM has a written
commitment from its insurance carrier to indemnify it for the full setiement amount. This has been accounted for as an adjusting event
after the reporting period, with the settlement payable recognised in provisions {note 14), insurance recevable recognised in trade and
other receivables (note 16) and the setiement expense and insurance income recognised net in exceptional tems (note 3).

In July 2018, ICM also reached an agreement in principle to resolve the Commodity Futures Trading Commission's (CFTC) investigation
into ICM’s role in the setting of USD ISDAFIX rates for £36 million ($50 milfion). The setlement is subject to final documentation of its
terms by the parties and approval by the CFTC. This has been accounted for as an adjusting event after the reporting period and has
been recognised in exceptional items (note 3) and provisions {note 14)

29. Group subsidiaries and related undertakings

In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act, a full list of related undertakings, the country of incorporation, the registered office
address and the effective percentage of equity owned is disclosed below, as at 31 March 2018.

Subsidiaries

Unless cotherwise stated the subsidiary undertakings below are wholly owned and the share capital disclosed comprises ordinary shares
or common stock (or the local equivalent thereof) which are indirectly held by NEX Group Holdings plc. These undertakings are controlled
by the Group and their results are fully consolidated into the Group's financial statements.

i Broadgate, London EC2M 7UR
Brokesr Tec Europe Limited
BrokerTec investments
ICapital Shipbrokers LLP ‘ 1
Capital Shipbroking Limited
EBS Dealing Resources International Limited
EBS Group Limited
EBS Investments
FBS No. 2 Limited
Godsell Astley & Pearce (Holdings) Limited
Entercapital No. 1 Limited .

ntercapital No 2 Limited ‘ _
rtercapital No 3 Limited
JMidhurst Chartering Limited
INEX Data Services Limited
INEX Exchange Limited
INEX Finance Limited
NEX International Investments Limited
NEX Markets Limited
NEX Optimisation Limited
NEX SEF Limited ] :
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wholly-Owned Subsidiaries

NEX Services Limrted

TriOptima UK Limited

30 Finsbury Square, London EC2P 2YU

ReMaitch Holdings Limited 3
ReMatch Limited 3

Avda. Leandro N. Alem 855, Piso 16, Buenos Aires
Intercapital Argentina S.A.
Intercapital Lat Am Services SA.
China
Unit 388, Division 302, No. 211 North Fute Road, Shanghai, Pilot Free Trade Zone 200120
EBS (Shanghai) Information Technology Co., Etd.’ 8
Germany :
khausstraBe 1, 60325 Frankfurt am Main
Intercapital (Genmany) GmbH

Kong

Floor, Alexandra House, 18 Chater Road, Central

Intercapital (Hong Kong) Limited
Nexstep HK 2 Limited
Nexstep HK 3 Limited
—
Floors 11 and 12, 132 Menachem Begin Road, Round Tower, Azrieli Center, Tel Aviv 6701101
EBS Financial Technologies Lid,

Toho Twin Tower Building, 3rd Floor, 1-5-2 Yuraku-cho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0006
EBS Dealing Resources Japan Limited

#-10 Nihonbashi-Muromachi, 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-0022

ITriOptima Japan K.K.

Laxembourg
7 Boulevard du Prince Henri, |.-1724 Luxembourg

Euclid Opportunities S.A.

0 Marina Boulevard, #21-01, Marina Bay Financial Centre, Singapore 013983
Intercapital No. 1 Pte. Ltd.
Jrtercapital No. 2 Pte. Ltd

INEX Services Pte. Ltd

Reset Holdings Private Limited
Reset Private Limited - 4.5
TriOptima Asta Pacific Pte. Limited ’

[Mister Samuelsgatan 17, 111 44 Stockholm
h’riOptima AB

[Switzertand

Lavaterstrasse 40, CH-8002 Zurich

EBS Service Company Limited

United States

The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware DE 19801
BrokerTec Americas LLC o 7
BrokerTec Holdings Inc - - ‘ T T
EBS Dealing Resources, Inc
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whnlly-Owned Subsidiaries

EBS Holdeo Inc.

EBS No 4LLC

Enso Financial Management LLP

Euclid investment Holdings Inc.

Intercapital Capital Markets LLC

Molten Markets, Inc.

INEX Group Investments Inc,

NEX Investments LLC

INEX Services North America LLC

-

TriOptima North Amenca LLC

o

B2 Broadgate, London EC2M 7UR

jabide Financial DRSP Limited

Abide Flnancial Limited

Abide Financial Repository Limited

Enso (UK) Limited

[Traiana Limited

Mady

Wia Giuseppe Marcora 11, 20121 Milan

B-MID SIMS.p.A.

93.1

Floors 25 and 28, 132 Menachem Begin Road, Square Tower, Azrieli Center, Tel Aviv 6701 1b1

IFraiana Technologies Ltd.

8.7

lersey

Box 384, 6 Hilgrove Street, St Heller JE4 9ZH

Enso |LP

859

1. @

Master Samuelsgatan 17, 111 44 Stockholm

INEX Abide Trade Repository AB

United States

[The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware DE 19801

Trarana, Inc.

887

Other related undertakings

Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings below are recognised using the equity method of accounting and the share capital disclosed
comprises ordinary shares or common stock (or the local equivalent thereof) which are held by subsidiaries of the Group.

Kingdom

2 Broadgate, London EC2M 7UR

BSN Capital Partners Limited 251
15 St John Street, London ECTM 4AA
Duco Technology Limited 41.2 1]
pVatson House, 54 Baker Street, London W1U 7BU - ) I ]
Exotix Holdings Limited 218 "
Citypeint Level 28, One Ropemaker Street, London EC2Y 9AW o
[Exotix Investment Partners LLP - - T ) 208 1, 11
3-11 Eyre Street Hill, London EC1R 5ET S

283 12

Research Exchange Limited
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n islands

ic/o Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Limited, Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1
1106

BSN Holdings Limited 25.1 8
Hong Kong
Punfet Building, 701 Nathan Road, Kowloon
Capital Shipbrokers Limited 50.0 3,14
E Shenton Way, #13-01, AXA Tower, Singapore 088811
Howe Robinson Partners Ple. Limited 350
kinited States
The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware DE 19801
WcadiaSoft, Inc. 250 15
CLS Aggregation Services LLC 425 7
15th Floor, 4 Times Square, New York NY 10036
BSN Capital Pariners LLC o 26.1 7
Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falis Drive, Wilmington, Delaware DE 19808
CpenGamma, Inc, 213 16
ic/o Cogency Global Inc., 860 New Burton Road, Suite 201, Dover, Delaware DE 19904
[TFSHCAP Holdings LLC 450 7
c/o Tradition Americas LLC, 5* Floor, 255 Greenwich Street, New York NY 10007

230 7

‘FsICcAPLLC

&

Partnership interest

Directty held by NEX Group ple

In biquidation

A ordinary shares or A ordinary comman stock

B ordinary shares or B ordinary common stock

Registared capitai

Membership interest

A ondinary shares (50%), D ordinary shares and E ordinary shares
Class A units

10 A ordinary shares (64%) and prefermed shares (26.5%)

11 Not consolidated or recognisad using the eduity method of accounting
A2 Series A shams

13 33% nominal holding, 22.5% voting and economic interest

14 A ordinary shares (50%) and B ordinary shares (45%)

15 Series B converfibie preferred stock (11.1%) and Senes D converdible preferred stock (37 4%}
16 Series C preferred stock (75,5%) and senes D preferred stock (29.5%)

COND DN -
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In the Group and Company financial staternents the following words shall have the following meanings'

Act
the Companies Act 2006

AFS
Available For Sale

AGM
Annual General Meeting

APA
Approved Publication Arrangement

APAC
Asia Pacific

APM
alternative performance measures

ARM
Approved Reporting Mechanism

AWS
Amazon Web Services

Basel lll

an intemational regulatory framework, developed by the Ba-
sel Committee on Banking Supervisions, to strengthen the
regulation, supervisicn and risk management of the banking
sector

BMR
EU Benchmarks Regulation

board
the board of Directors of NEX Group plc

Brexit
the prospective withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the
European Union

BSMP
Bonus Share Matching Plan

ccp
central counterparty

CcDS
credit default swaps

CFETS
China Foreign Exchange Trade System

CFTC
Commodity Futures Trading Commission

cGU
cash generating unit

CME
CME Group inc, an American financial market company op-
erating an opticns and futures exchange

CNH
represents the exchange rate of renminbi that trades off-
shore in Hong Kong

71

Code
FRC’s UK Corporate Governance Code published in April
2016

Companies Act
Companies Act 2006 (as amended)

Company or NGHP

NEX Group Holdings ple, a public limited company incorpo-
rated in England and Wales with registered number
06694512, whose registered office is at 2 Broadgate, London
EC2ZM TUR.

CRD
Capital Requirements Directive

Defra
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

Deloitte
Peloitte LL.P

Dodd-Frank
The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protec-
tion Act

dollaror $
unless otherwise specified all references to dollars or $ doltar
symbol are to the currency of the US

DSBP
Deferred Share Bonus Plan

e-MIiD
e-MID SIM S.p.A

EMEA
Europe, the Middle East and Africa

EMIR
European Market Infrastructure Regulation

EPS
earnings per share

ETR
effective tax rate

EU
European Union

ESMA
European Securities and Markets Authority

EY CertifyPoint
an accredited, independent certification institute

FCA
Financial Conduct Authority

FICC
Fixed Income Clearing Corporation
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Fitch
Fitch Ratings Limited

FRC
Financiat Reporting Council

FTSE 100

index comprised of the 100 largest companies listed on the
Londen Stock Exchange in terms of thelr market capitalisa-
tion

FTSE 250

index comprised of madium-capitalised companies listed on
the London Stock Exchange not inciuded in the FTSE 100
index

FTSE All-Share
the aggregation of the FTSE 100, FTSE 250 and FTSE
Small Cap indices

FX
foreign exchange

Garban
Garban pic

GDP
gross domestic product

GDPR
General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679, a regula-
tion in EU law on data protection and privacy

GEMG
Global Executive Management Group

GFC
Group Finance Committee

GOC
Global Operating Committee

Group or NGHP Group
the Company and its subsidiary undertakings

IAS
International Accounting Standards

IASB
International Accounting Standards Body

{CAAP
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

ICAP
ICAP Giobal Broking and Information Business, acquired by
TP ICAP plc on 30 December 2016

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards

IGBB

ICAP's global hybrid voice broking and information business,
including ICAP’s associated technology and broking plat-
forms (including 1-Swap and Fusion} and certain of ICAP's
joint ventures and associates
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INFBV
INCAP Finance BY

ICM
intercapital Capital Markets LLC, a subsidiary of NGHP

Infinity

a cloud-hosted Traiana platform which makes certain Tra-
iana services available fo other NEX Optimisation busi-
nesses as well as salected third parties

Intercapital

Intercapital Limited (formerly Intercapital plc)
IPGL

IPGL (Holdings) Limited

isCl

Industry Standard Common |dentifier

ISDA

International Swaps and Derivatives Association
I50

International Qrganization for Standardization
IT

information technology

Libid

London interbank bid rate

Libor
Lendon interbank offered rate

Lintstock
Lintstock Limited, a London-based corporate advisory firm

LTIP
Long-Term incentive Plan

Merger
the merger of Garban and Intercapital on ¢ Septernber 1599

MIFID
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

Moody’s
Moody's Investors Services

Nasdaq
a National Securities exchange

NDF
non-deliverable forward

NEX

NEX Group pic (formerly ICAP Newco plc), a public limited
company incorperated in England and Wales with registered
number 10013770, whose registered office 1s at 2
Broadgate, London EC2M 7UR

NEX Group
NEX Group plec and its subsidiary undertakings
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NEX Group shares
NEX Group ple ordinary shares of 17.5p each

NEX Regulatory Reporting
a business within NEX Optimisation formerly known as Abide
Financial

NEX Trust
NEX Group Employee Share Trust

non-bank
encompassing the professional trading community including
hedge funds, trading houses and corporates

nim
not measurable

Offer
the recommended offer for NEX Group plc by CME London
Limited and CME Group Inc

oTC

over-the-counter markets in which instruments are traded di-
rectly between participants by telephone and/cr electronically
rather than via an exchange

Peatland Code
a voluntary standard for UK peatland projects wishing to
market the climate benefit of peatland restoration

psp
Performance Share Plan

RCF
revolving credit faciity

REMIT
Regulation on Wholesale Energy Market Integrity and Trans-
parency

RTS 22
MIFID RTS 22 Commission Delegated Regulation (EU)
2017/590 of 28 July 2016 supplementing MiFIR with regard
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to regulatory technical standards for the reporting of transac-
tions to competent authorities.

RTS 24

MiFID RTS 24 Commission Deiegated Reguilation (EU)
2017/580 of 24 June 2016 supplementing Regulation (EU)
No 600/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council
with regard to reguiatory technical standards for the mainte-
nance of relevant data relating to orders in financial instru-
ments.

SAYE
Sharesave Plan

Scheme Document

the circular dated 25 April 2018 detailing the Scheme of Ar-
rangement under Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006 be-
tween NEX Group plc and holders of NEX Scheme Shares,
avallable to download from www nex com/offer

SEEPP
Senior Executive Equity Participatron Plan

SEF
swap execution facility

Statutory Audit Servicea Order

the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market in-
vestigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Pro-
cesses and Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014

Tibor
Tokyo interbank offered rate

TP ICAP

TP ICAP plc (formerly Tullett Prebon plc), a public limited
company registered in England and Wales with registered
number 05807599, whose registered office is at Tower 42,
Level 37, 25 Old Broad Street, London EC2N tHQ

WACC
weighted average cost of capital



